

Research and Information Service Briefing Paper

Paper 05/21 29 July 2021 NIAR 38-2021

Compiled by Seán McGeown

Brexit Outcomes and Northern Ireland: A Reading List

Research and Information Service briefings are compiled for the benefit of MLAs and their support staff. Authors are available to discuss the contents of these papers with Members and their staff but cannot advise members of the general public. We do, however, welcome written evidence that relates to our papers and this should be sent to the Research and Information Service, Northern Ireland Assembly, Room 139, Parliament Buildings, Belfast BT4 3XX or e-mailed to RLS@niassembly.gov.uk

Table of Contents

1. INTRODUCTION

2. GOVERNMENTS

United Kingdom Government

Government of Ireland

Northern Ireland Executive

Scottish Government

3. LEGISLATURES

Westminster Parliament

Houses of the Oireachtas/Tithe an Oireachtas

Northern Ireland Assembly

Senedd Cymru/Welsh Parliament

Scottish Parliament

4. EU INSTITUTIONS

European Council and Council of the European Union

European Commission

European Parliament

5. COMMENTARY AND ANALYSIS

Brexit Institute (Dublin City University)

British Irish Chamber of Commerce

Carnegie Europe

Centre for Brexit Policy

Centre for Brexit Studies (University of Birmingham)

Centre for Cross Border Studies

Centre for European Reform

Committee on the Administration of Justice

Congressional Research Service

Constitution Unit – University College London

Consumer Council

EU-UK Forum

Euractiv

European Policy Centre

Federal Trust

Global Britain/Brexit-Watch.org

Institute for Government

Institute of International and European Affairs

Lawyers for Britain

Logistics UK (formerly Freight Transport Association)

London School of Economics and Political Science

Manufacturing NI

Northern Ireland Chamber of Commerce and Industry

Northern Ireland Council for Voluntary Action

Northern Ireland Retail Consortium

Northern Slant

Queen's University Belfast

Retail NI

Slugger O'Toole

The Conversation

The UK in a Changing Europe (ESRC)

Ulster Farmers' Union

Ulster University

6. MEDIA COVERAGE

1. INTRODUCTION

In the period between the referendum on the United Kingdom's membership of the European Union in June 2016 and its formal departure on 31 January 2020, the Assembly's Research and Information Service (RalSe) published 31 versions of 'Brexit and Northern Ireland: A Reading List'. This was followed by 6 versions of 'Brexit Transition and Northern Ireland: A Reading List', the last appearing on 31 December 2020.

This new reading list focuses specifically on the period following the departure of the UK from the EU – that is, the period from 1st January 2021. The list is intended to assist Members of the Legislative Assembly (MLAs) and others in scrutinising this new situation, and particularly the ways in which it affects Northern Ireland and the border.

For political, economic, geographic and social reasons, the impacts on Northern Ireland of UK withdrawal from the EU might be expected to differ in important ways from the impact of withdrawal on other parts of the UK. Most obviously, Northern Ireland is unique in that it is the only part of the UK which has a land border with an EU Member State. In addition, Northern Ireland is subject to the Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol.

When compiling this reading list, therefore, an attempt has been made to select commentary, analysis and media coverage which has particular relevance to the specific context of Northern Ireland, the border and the operation of the Protocol. The list, however, also includes strategically important documents, such as the published positions of the UK and Irish governments and the EU institutions, and documents addressing the ongoing discussions regarding the implementation of the Protocol. Selected material from the devolved institutions in Scotland and Wales has also been included, given the potential relevance and read-across to the work of the Executive and the Assembly.

As the volume of published material on Brexit is vast and varied, this reading list does not purport to be a single comprehensive source covering all issues and opinions. However, the material has been drawn from a wide range of well-established and authoritative sources and RalSe intends to update the reading list as appropriate.

In addition to this reading list, RalSe has created an <u>EU Exit Hub</u> with information on the Protocol, Common Frameworks and EU Exit Legislation. The hub also

provides access to the research papers which we have produced thus far, a selection of blog articles, and previous iterations of our Brexit reading lists. The EU Exit Hub also draws together useful resources produced by others, including their own hubs and blogs.

2. GOVERNMENTS

United Kingdom Government

THE PRIME MINISTER'S OFFICE

News Release: PM call with President of the European Commission: 22 July

<u>2021</u>

News Release: PM call with Irish Taoiseach Micheal Martin: 20 July 2021

News Release: Statement following the meeting of the Specialised Committee on the implementation of the Protocol on Ireland and Northern Ireland: 19
July 2021

News Release: PM meeting with the European Commission President and European Council President: 12 June 2021

News Release: PM meeting with President Biden: 10 June 2021

News Release: Partnership Council and Withdrawal Agreement Joint

Committee: 9 June

News Release: PM call with European Commission President: 8 June 2021

News Release: Lord Frost calls on EU to show pragmatism on the Protocol after meetings with a number of business and community representatives in Northern Ireland 11 May 2021

News Release: <u>Statement following the meeting between Lord Frost and Vice</u> President Šefčovič: 16 April 2021

News Release: <u>Statement following the seventh meeting of the Ireland / Northern Ireland Specialised Committee</u> 26 March 2021

International Treaty: <u>Agreements reached between the United Kingdom of Great</u>

<u>Britain and Northern Ireland and the European Union</u> Updated 11 March 2021

News Release: <u>Lord Frost call with European Commission Vice President</u> **Maroš Šefčovič: 3 March 2021**

News Release: PM call with Arlene Foster: 3 February 2021

CABINET OFFICE

Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee webpage

UK Common Frameworks webpage

News Release: <u>Government outlines significant changes needed to make</u> <u>Northern Ireland Protocol sustainable</u> 21 July 2021

Command Paper 502: Northern Ireland Protocol: The way forward July 2021

Collection: The Border Operating Model; A guide to how the border with the European Union will work after the transition period Updated 20 July 2021

News Release: Government to set out way forward on the Northern Ireland Protocol to Parliament 08 July 2021

Policy Paper: <u>Summary: The UK's new relationship with the EU</u> Updated 02 July 2021

Guidance: Common Travel Area: rights of UK and Irish citizens
Updated 01 July 2021

News Release: Extension to Northern Ireland Protocol grace period for chilled meats agreed 30 June 2021

Policy Paper: <u>Declaration by the United Kingdom on Meat Products: 30 June 2021</u>

Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee Annual Report 2020 25 June 2021

News Release: <u>UK statement on the meeting of the Withdrawal Agreement</u>
<u>Joint Committee: 9 June 2021</u>

Common Travel Area guidance Updated 2 June 2021

Letter from Lord Frost to Arlene Foster, Michelle O'Neill, Angus Robertson and Mick Antoniw on engagement regarding Trade and Cooperation Agreement implementation 27 May 2021

Collection: Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee Updated 26 March 2021

Collection: Intergovernmental Relations - Documents relating to engagement between the UK Government and the devolved administrations
Updated 24 March 2021

News Release: <u>Joint statement by the co-chairs of the EU-UK Joint</u>
<u>Committee: 24 February 2021</u> 24 February 2021

News Release: <u>Joint statement by the UK Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster Gove and European Commission Vice-President Šefčovič</u> 11 February 2021

News Release: <u>Joint statement from Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster</u>
<u>Gove and Vice-President Šefčovič; The virtual meeting took place with the</u>
<u>First Minister and deputy First Minister of Northern Ireland</u> 03 February 2021

<u>Letter from the Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster to the Vice President of the European Commission: 2 February 2021</u>

Collection: Intergovernmental Relations - Documents relating to engagement between the UK Government and the devolved administrations
Updated 11 January 2021

Collection: Moving goods into, out of, or through Northern Ireland from 1
January 2021 Updated 07 January 2021

Collection: Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee Updated 07 January 2021

Policy Paper: The Northern Ireland Protocol; Details of the agreement reached by Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee regarding the implementation of the Northern Ireland Protocol Updated 05 January 2021

Guidance: Common Travel Area: rights of UK and Irish citizens
Updated 31 December 2020

<u>DEPARTMENT FOR BUSINESS, ENERGY & INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY</u>

<u>Guidance for UK businesses on rules for selling services to Ireland</u> Updated 11 June 2021

Guidance: Placing manufactured goods on the market in Northern Ireland 31 December 2020

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENT, FOOD & RURAL AFFAIRS

News Release: Government to boost support for Northern Ireland agri-food traders 12 July 2021

Guidance: Movement Assistance Scheme: get help with moving agrifood goods to Northern Ireland Updated 12 July 2021

Guidance: Import or move live animals, germinal products, animal byproducts and high risk food and feed not of animal origin Updated 16 June 2021

Guidance: Import or move food and drink from the EU and Northern Ireland to Great Britain 15 June 2021

Guidance: Import or move composite products from the EU and Northern Ireland to Great Britain Updated 15 June 2021

News Release: Fishing quota boost distributed across the Union 24 March 2021

Guidance: Import plants and plant products from the EU to Great Britain and Northern Ireland Updated 11 March 2021

News Release: Movement Assistance Scheme expanded to support organic produce; Traders moving organic products to Northern Ireland are now eligible for support following the expansion of the scheme 02 March 2021

Guidance: Move groups of agrifood products from GB to Northern Ireland: prepare your consignment for checks at the point of entry 05 February 2021

Guidance: Export groups of products of animal origin to the EU or Northern Ireland Updated 6 January 2021

HM REVENUE & CUSTOMS

Guidance: <u>Trading and moving goods in and out of Northern Ireland</u> Updated 28 June 2021

Guidance: Check if you can bring your goods into Northern Ireland from Great Britain without paying duty Updated 24 June 2021

Guidance: Claim VAT refunds in Northern Ireland or the EU, if you're established in Northern Ireland or in the EU Updated 14 June 2021

Guidance: Moving goods temporarily into and out of Great Britain and Northern Ireland 03 June 2021

Guidance: <u>VAT on movements of goods between Northern Ireland and the EU</u>
<u>Updated</u> 03 June 2021

Guidance: <u>Customs Declaration Completion Requirements for The Northern</u>
<u>Ireland Protocol Updated</u> 06 May 2021

Guidance: <u>Declaring goods you bring into Northern Ireland 'not at risk' of moving to the EU</u> Updated 22 April 2021

Guidance: Apply for authorisation for the UK Trader Scheme if you bring goods into Northern Ireland Updated 22 April 2021

Guidance: Check if you can declare goods you bring into Northern Ireland not 'at risk' of moving to the EU Updated 16 March 2021

Guidance: Check if you need to make an entry summary declaration; Find out if you need to make an entry summary declaration if you are moving goods into Great Britain or Northern Ireland directly or from Great Britain to Northern Ireland Updated 16 March 2021

Guidance: Making an entry summary declaration; If you are moving goods into Great Britain, into Northern Ireland from Great Britain, or into Northern Ireland from outside the EU, you'll need to make an entry summary declaration Updated 16 March 2021

Guidance: Making an entry summary declaration; If you are moving goods into Great Britain, into Northern Ireland from Great Britain, or into Northern Ireland from outside the EU, you'll need to make an entry summary declaration Updated 05 March 2021

Guidance: Sending parcels to and from Northern Ireland Updated 04 March 2021

Corporate Report: Accounting Officer assessment summary: Northern Ireland
Trader Support Service Programme 29 January 2021

Guidance: Claim a waiver for duty on goods that you bring to Northern Ireland from Great Britain Updated 19 January 2021

Guidance: Sales of second-hand motor vehicles in Northern Ireland
14 January 2021

Guidance: Moving qualifying goods from Northern Ireland to the rest of the UK Updated 13 January 2021

Guidance: Making an indirect export from Northern Ireland 13 January 2021

Guidance: Moving your home from Great Britain to Northern Ireland 08 January 2021

Guidance: Apply to become a registered exporter if you're established in Northern Ireland 31 December 2020

Guidance: Paying VAT on imports from outside the UK to Great Britain and from outside the EU to Northern Ireland Updated 31 December 2020

Guidance: Paying VAT on goods from the EU to Northern Ireland Updated 31 December 2020

Guidance: Claim VAT back on tax-free shopping in Northern Ireland
31 December 2020

Guidance: Retail Export Scheme (Northern Ireland); Find out when goods can be zero-rated if they're sold to overseas visitors for personal use by a VAT-registered business in Northern Ireland (VAT Notice 704) 31 December 2020

Guidance: <u>Dispatches of goods from Northern Ireland to the EU, and charging VAT</u> 31 December 2020

Guidance: Exports, sending goods abroad and charging VAT; Find out if VAT is due when you sell, send or transfer goods from Great Britain to outside the EU or from Northern Ireland outside the UK and EU Updated 31 December 2020

Guidance: Making an entry summary declaration; If you are moving goods into Great Britain, from Great Britain to Northern Ireland, or into Northern Ireland from outside the EU, you'll need to make an entry summary declaration Updated 31 December 2020

NORTHERN IRELAND OFFICE

<u>Secretary of State for Northern Ireland, Brandon Lewis MP - Oral Statement on the Northern Ireland Protocol</u> 21 July 2021

Written Ministerial Statement by The Secretary of State for Northern Ireland (Brandon Lewis): Northern Ireland Protocol: Implementation 03 March 2021

Government of Ireland

Statement by Minister for Foreign Affairs on the UK Government Paper on the Protocol 21 July 2021

The Taoiseach and Prime Minister Johnson spoke by telephone this afternoon 21 July 2021

News Release: Minister Coveney welcomes significant progress on Protocol issues 01 July 2021

News Release: Taoiseach Meets New DUP Leader 04 June 2021

News Release: Minister Coveney and Minister Byrne welcome final steps in ratifying the EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement 26 April 2021

News Release: Speech by An Tánaiste Leo Varadkar TD - Two Islands - 'One Future, Ireland, the UK and the EU' 15 April 2021

News Release: Michael McGrath TD, Minister for Public Expenditure & Reform Speech to the Institute of International and European Affairs: Responding to Challenges and Looking to the Future 31 March 2021

News Release: Speaker's St Patrick's Day Celebration - Taoiseach Remarks
17 March 2021

News Release: <u>Taoiseach's address at Brookings Institution 'Ireland: Shaping</u> the Future at Home and in the World' 15 March 2021

News Release: Minister Byrne meets with Ad-Hoc Group on North South and East West Cooperation 03 March 2021

News Release: <u>Government Operational Update – Two months post Brexit transition</u> 01 March 2021

News Release: Exporters face further Brexit related UK import checks in a month's time 01 March 2021

News Release: <u>Ireland & Wales launch Shared Statement and Joint Action</u>
Plan 2021-25 01 March 2021

News Release: Minister of State for European Affairs, Thomas Byrne, makes virtual visit to Great Britain 24 February 2021

News Release: Speech by An Taoiseach at IFA AGM 28 January 2021

News Release: Minister Thomas Byrne welcomes new direct route between Dublin and Amsterdam 18 January 2021

News Release: Address by An Taoiseach Micheál Martin to the IIEA 2021:

Ambitions and Challenges for Ireland in a Changing World

Published on 15 January 2021

News Release: <u>Ireland and Scotland publish Bilateral Review of future</u> relationship 14 January 2021

<u>Ireland-Scotland Joint Bilateral Review – Report and Recommendations</u> 2021-25 14 January 2021

News Release: Minister McGrath welcomes €1 billion from the EU's Brexit

Fund 13 January 2021

News Release: <u>Donohoe welcomes Commission's proposal on Brexit</u>

Adjustment Reserve allocations 13 January 2021

News Release: <u>Social Protection Measures between Ireland and the United Kingdom are maintained</u> 01 January 2021

News Release: Bilateral Agreement on Exchange of Driving Licences with UK

31 December 2020

Northern Ireland Executive

nidirect: Advice on leaving the EU webpage

DEPARTMENT FOR THE ECONOMY

EU Exit Analysis webpage

EU Exit Advice webpage

News Release: Dodds raises protocol issues with Lord Frost 03 June 2021

Invest NI: Northern Ireland: Market Access to Great Britain and the European

Union 15 February 2021

News Release: Economy Minister calls on businesses to apply for UK Trader

Scheme 10 February 2021

News Release: Minister calls for action on parcel deliveries to NI

03 February 2021

News Release: Economy Minister calls for urgent action to be taken on

deliveries to Northern Ireland 04 January 2021

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, ENVIRONMENT AND RURAL AFFAIRS

Latest EU Exit news webpage

News Release: Poots informs US Consulate General of challenges of NI

Protocol 02 April 2021

News Release: Lyons brings forward new regulations in first step of

transition for local agriculture 24 February 2021

News Release: Gordon Lyons MLA outlines priorities as Minister of the Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs 04 February 2021

News Release: Poots reiterates call for Common Travel Area and confirms extension of education phase for pet checks 29 January 2021

News Release: Poots seeks fair share of fishing quotas for NI fishermen

28 January 2021

News Release: Poots asks for action on soil and plants 27 January 2021

News Release: New processes for the movement of hay and straw from GB to

NI 21 January 2021

News Release: New processes for moving equines from GB to NI

19 January 2021

News Release: Poots calls for immediate action on pet travel regulations

07 January 2021

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

News Release: Ministers call for an end to bypassing of Devolved

Governments 24 March 2021

News Release: <u>Dublin-Belfast Corridor offers great economic potential</u> –

Murphy 24 March 2021

THE EXECUTIVE OFFICE

Brexit webpage

News Release: Executive condemns threats against workers 02 February 2021

NORTHERN IRELAND STATISTICS AND RESEARCH AGENCY (NISRA)

EU Exit Analysis: publications

<u>Traffic Counts of Vehicles at the Fifteen Main Northern Ireland-Ireland Border</u>
<u>Crossing Locations 01 June 2021</u>

Scottish Government

Brexit webpage

News Release: Answers needed on UK's replacement for EU funds; Urgent

clarity required 06 July 2021

Information Note: The Brexit Referendum 5 Years on – Summary of Impacts to

Date June 2021

News Release: Damaging legacy of Brexit 24 June 2021

<u>UK/EU relationship: letter from Constitution Secretary to UK government</u> 14 Mar 2021

News Release: <u>Devolution being "fundamentally undermined"</u>; <u>UK</u>
<u>Government taking control from the Scottish Parliament, says new report</u>
08 March 2021

Report: After Brexit: UK Internal Market Act and devolution March 2021

Policy Document: <u>Steadfastly European, Scotland's past, present and future</u>
March 2021

News Release: New border control post at Cairnryan; Site to be used for post-Brexit import inspections 24 February 2021

News Release: <u>Scotland's 'Brexit disaster'; Problems for Scottish companies 'multiplying' in first four weeks</u> 03 February 2021

News Release: <u>Ireland and Scotland publish Bilateral Review of future</u> relationship 14 January 2021

<u>Ireland-Scotland Joint Bilateral Review – Report and Recommendations</u> <u>2021-25</u> 14 January 2021

News Release: <u>Stark impact of Brexit; Analysis highlights benefits of rejoining EU</u> 31 December 2020

Factsheet: EU-UK negotiations: outcome analysis 31 December 2020

3. LEGISLATURES

Westminster Parliament

Brexit: research and analysis webpage

WRITTEN MINISTERIAL STATEMENT

The Minister of State at the Cabinet Office (Lord Frost CMG): **EU Relations:** Withdrawal Agreement 30 June 2021

The Minister of State at the Cabinet Office (Lord Frost CMG): Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee: Eighth Meeting 09 June 2021

The Secretary of State for Northern Ireland (Brandon Lewis): **Northern Ireland Protocol: Implementation** 03 March 2021

The Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster and Minister for the Cabinet Office (Michael Gove): Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee Meeting: 24 February 2021

The Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster and Minister for the Cabinet Office (Michael Gove): European Union (Future Relationship) Act 2020
21 January 2021

HOUSE OF COMMONS - HANSARD

Statement - The Secretary of State for Northern Ireland (Brandon Lewis): Northern Ireland Protocol 21 July 2021

Debate: Northern Ireland Protocol 15 July 2021

Statement: Northern Ireland 13 April 2021

Leaving the EU: Impact on the UK 17 March 2021

Urgent Question: Northern Ireland Protocol 10 March 2021

Urgent Question: Northern Ireland Protocol: Implementation

02 February 2021

Urgent Question: Northern Ireland Protocol: Disruption to Trade

13 January 2021

HOUSE OF COMMONS - COMMITTEE INQUIRIES

Environment, Food and Rural Affairs Committee: <u>Seafood and Meat Exports</u> to the EU

European Scrutiny Committee:

- The institutional framework of the UK/EU Trade and Cooperation agreement
- The UK's new relationship with the EU

Foreign Affairs Committee: The UK's relationship with the EU

International Trade Committee: <u>UK-EU trading relationship</u>

Northern Ireland Affairs Committee

- Citizenship and Passport Processes in Northern Ireland
- Brexit and the Northern Ireland Protocol

Petitions Committee: <u>E-petition session: The movement of goods between</u> **Great Britain and Northern Ireland - Non-inquiry session** 22 February 2021

Public Administration and Constitutional Affairs Committee: Common Frameworks

Treasury Committee: <u>UK's economic and trading relationship with the EU</u>

HOUSE OF COMMONS LIBRARY

Debate Pack: The Northern Ireland Protocol 13 July 2021

Constituency Casework: New customs rules for trade with the EU

26 March 2021

After Brexit: Visiting, working, and living in the EU 05 March 2021

Insight: Governing the new UK-EU relationship and resolving disputes 24 February 2021

The UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement: governance and dispute settlement 19 February 2021

Constituency Casework: New customs rules for trade with the EU 18 February 2021

The movement of goods between Great Britain and Northern Ireland
18 February 2021

Insight: Driving in the EU after Brexit 17 February 2021

Brexit and financial services 16 February 2021

Reading list of UK and devolved Parliament and Assembly publications on the UK's withdrawal from the European Union and UK-EU future relations

10 February, 2021

Insight: How might MPs scrutinise the new UK-EU relationship?

04 February 2021

Insight: Northern Ireland Protocol: Article 16 and EU vaccine export controls

02 February 2021

Debate Pack: Global Britain 06 January 2021

Brexit timeline: events leading to the UK's exit from the European Union

06 January 2021

The UK's contribution to the EU budget 04 January 2021

HOUSE OF LORDS HANSARD

Statement - The Minister of State, Cabinet Office (Lord Frost):

Northern Ireland Protocol 21 July 2021

Question: Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol 15 July 2021

Question: Northern Ireland: Jewish Community 14 July 2021

Question: Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland 24 June 2021

Question: Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland 27 May 2021

Question: Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol 29 April 2021

Question: Northern Ireland: Citizens' Rights 28 April 2021

Private Notice Question: Northern Ireland: Violence 13 April 2021

Question: Northern Ireland and Great Britain: Trade 25 March 2021

Question: Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland 25 March 2021

Question: Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland 15 March 2021

Question: Northern Ireland Protocol 11 March 2021

Private Notice Question: Northern Ireland Protocol: Grace Period

10 March 2021:

Private Notice Question: Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland: Border Controls

04 February 2021

Debate on Response to Commons Urgent Question, 13 January 2021: Protocol

on Northern Ireland: Disruption to Trade 14 January 2021

HOUSE OF LORDS - COMMITTEE INQUIRIES

Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland Sub-Committee: <u>Introductory inquiry into</u> the operation of the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland

European Union Committee: Future UK-EU Relations: governance

EU Goods Sub-Committee: Future UK-EU Relations: Trade in Goods

EU Services Sub-Committee: Future UK-EU relations: Trade in Services

HOUSE OF LORDS LIBRARY

In Focus: Queen's Speech 2021: UK-EU relationship 04 May, 2021

In Focus: International haulage: Government support 01 March 2021

In Focus: Impact of Brexit on UK musicians performing in the EU

22 January 2021

In Focus: **UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement** 05 January 2021

Houses of the Oireachtas/Tithe an Oireachtas

Dáil Éireann - Debates

European Council Meeting: Statements 22 June 2021

Brexit (Fishing Industry): Statements 21 January 2021

Brexit (Foreign Affairs): Statements 21 January 2021

EU-UK Trade and Co-operation Agreement: Motion 20 January 2021

Seanad Éireann - Debate

Matters Arising from the Withdrawal of the UK from the EU: Statements 29 March 2021

Joint Committee on Agriculture and the Marine

The Impact of Brexit on the Agriculture Industry: Minister for Agriculture, Food and the Marine 02 February 2021

<u>Impact of Brexit on Fisheries Industry: Discussion (Resumed)</u> 22 January 2021

Joint Committee on European Union Affairs

Interparliamentary Relations after Brexit: Northern Ireland Assembly
Committee for the Executive Office 12 May 2021
EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement: Engagement with Mr. Barry
Andrews, MEP 05 May 2021

EU Protocol on Northern Ireland-Ireland: Engagement with the Minister for Foreign Affairs 27 April 2021

Northern Ireland Protocol (Article 16) (resumed): Engagement with Mr. Maroš Šefčovič 16 February 2021

Northern Ireland Protocol (Article 16): Minister of State at the Department of Foreign Affairs 09 February 2021

Joint Committee on the Implementation of the Good Friday Agreement Engagement with Irish Central Border Area Network 22 June 2021

The EU and Irish Unity - Planning and Preparing for Constitutional Changen (Resumed) 30 March 2021

The EU and Irish Unity - Planning and Preparing for Constitutional Change (Resumed) 23 March 2021

The EU and Irish Unity - Planning and Preparing for Constitutional Change 16 February 2021

Joint Committee on Transport and Communications Networks

Customs Checks Post Brexit: Discussion 22 January 2021

Seanad Special Committee on the Withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union

<u>Trade and Co-operation Agreement, Northern Ireland Protocol, and EU-UK Relationships post Brexit: Commissioner Mairead McGuinness</u> 15 June 2021

Impact of Brexit on the Food and Drink Industry: Discussion 14 June 2021

Brexit Issues: Discussion 08 June 2021

Impact of Brexit on the Higher Education Sector: Discussion 31 May 2021

Citizens' Rights in Northern Ireland Post Brexit: Discussion 24 May 2021

Impact of Brexit on Irish and UK Businesses: British Irish Chamber of Commerce 17 May 2021

Responses to Brexit in Further and Higher Education: Minister for Further and Higher Education, Research, Innovation and Science 26 April 2021

New and Future Relationship Between the UK and Ireland 19 April 2021

Impact of Brexit on Business Sector 29 March 2021

Impact of Brexit on Business Sector 22 March 2021 Cross-Border Healthcare Directive 08 March 2021

Impact of Brexit on Data Protection and Data Flows between the UK and the EU 01 March 2021

Impact of EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement on Ireland 22 February 2021

Impact of Brexit on Trade Connectivity and Trade Flows 15 February 2021

Engagement with Committee for the Executive Office, Northern Ireland Assembly on Impact of Brexit 02 February 2021

Northern Ireland Assembly

Brexit Brief newsletter

OFFICIAL REPORT

Matters of the Day: <u>EU-UK Relations and Solutions to the Implementation of</u> Protocol 05 July 2021

Private Members' Motion: **Brexit and Card Fees** 19 April 2021

Matter of the Day: Withdrawal Agreement Grace Periods 08 March 2021

Question for Urgent Oral Answer - Minister for Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs: Port Inspection Facilities 01 March 2021

Private Members' Motion: North-South and East-West Trade 23 February 2021

Question for Urgent Oral Answer – Minister for Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs: Checks at Ports 02 February 2021

Matter of the Day: <u>Condemnation of Threats to Workers at Border Control</u> **Posts** 02 February 2021

Matter of the Day: EU Proposal to Invoke Article 16 01 February 2021

Question for Urgent Oral Answer – Minister for the Economy: <u>Supply Chain</u> <u>between Great Britain and Northern Ireland</u> 18 January 2021

COMMITTEES

Ad Hoc Committee on a Bill of Rights

Minutes of Evidence: Implications of Brexit for Human Rights: Equality
Commission for Northern Ireland; Northern Ireland Human Rights
Commission 29 April 2021

Committee for Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs

EU Exit webpage

Minutes of Evidence: Withdrawal of DAERA and Local Authority Staff from Ports: Mr Edwin Poots MLA, Minister of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs 03 June 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Withdrawal of DAERA and Local Authority Staff from Ports: Police Service of Northern Ireland 06 May 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Withdrawal of DAERA and Local Authority Staff from Ports: Mid and East Antrim Borough Council 06 May 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Withdrawal of DAERA and Local Authority Staff from Ports: Belfast City Council; Newry, Mourne and Down District Council 29 April 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Withdrawal of DAERA and Local Authority Staff from Ports: Mid and East Antrim Borough Council 22 April 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Withdrawal of DAERA and Local Authority Staff from Ports: Police Service of Northern Ireland 15 April 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Withdrawal of DAERA and Local Authority Staff from Ports: Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs
15 April 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Withdrawal of DAERA and Local Authority Port Staff: GMB, NIPSA and Unite 11 March 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Border Control Posts/Points of Entry: Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs</u> 04 March 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>EU Exit and the Impact of the Trade and Cooperation</u>
<u>Agreement: Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs</u> 25
February 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Implications of EU Exit for the Local Fishing Fleet:</u>
<u>Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs</u> 04 February 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Future Agriculture Funding: Department of Agriculture,</u> <u>Environment and Rural Affairs</u> 28 January 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Impact of EU Exit on the Fishing Industry: Northern Ireland Fishermen's Federation 19 January 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Operational and Practical Issues Arising from EU Exit: Department of Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs 07 January 2021

Committee for Finance

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland: Professor Katy Hayward; Mr David Henig; Mr Martin Howe QC; Dr Anna Jerzewska</u> 30 June 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland: Dr Graham Gudgin;</u> Professor Ronan McCrea; Professor David Phinnemore 23 June 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Public Procurement Common Framework: Department of Finance</u> 27 January 2021

Committee for Health

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland: Department of Health</u> 01 July 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Brexit: Department of Health 15 April 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Common Framework on Food and Feed Safety and Hygiene, and Common Framework on Nutrition Labelling, Composition and Standards: Food Standards Agency 04 February 2021

Committee for Infrastructure

Minutes of Evidence: <u>EU Successor Funding: Northern Ireland Local</u>
<u>Government Association; Society of Local Authority Chief Executives</u>
05 May 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>EU Successor Funding: Northern Ireland Local</u>
<u>Government Association; Society of Local Authority Chief Executives</u>
05 May 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Brexit and Current Issues: Northern Ireland Ports
17 February 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Brexit and COVID Issues: Retail NI 17 February 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Brexit Issues: Department for Infrastructure</u> 27 January 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Brexit Issues Facing the Freight and Haulage Sector:
Northern Ireland Retail Consortium; Logistics UK; Road Haulage Association
20 January 2021

Committee for Justice

Minutes of Evidence: Key Issues: Mrs Naomi Long MLA, Minister of Justice 19 January 2021

Committee for the Economy

Minutes of Evidence: EU Exit: Department for the Economy 19 May 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>EU Exit and Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland:</u>
<u>Federation of Small Businesses, Logistics UK, Northern Ireland Retail</u>
<u>Consortium, Retail NI</u> 24 February 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>EU Exit: Professor Katy Hayward and Professor David</u> Phinnemore, Queen's University Belfast 20 January 2021

Committee for the Executive Office

Brexit Scrutiny webpage

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Protocol on Ireland/ Northern Ireland: Lord David Frost,</u>
<u>Cabinet Office</u> 09 July 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>United Kingdom Exit from the European Union: Mr Declan Kearney MLA and Mr Gary Middleton MLA, Junior Ministers,</u>
Executive Office 30 June 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland: European</u> Commission 28 June 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>United Kingdom Exit from the European Union: Mr Declan Kearney and Mr Gordon Lyons, Junior Ministers, The Executive</u>
Office 26 May 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>European Union Programmes</u>: <u>Special EU Programmes</u>
Body 26 May 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Brexit Issues: Mr Declan Kearney MLA and Mr Gordon</u>
<u>Lyons MLA, Junior Ministers, The Executive Office</u> 28 April 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>The EU and Irish Unity: Mr Mark Bassett and Professor</u> Colin Harvey 28 April 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Briefing by Mrs Arlene Foster MLA, First Minister; and Mrs Michelle O'Neill MLA, deputy First Minister</u> 14 April 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Article 2 of the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland:

Equality Commission for Northern Ireland; Irish Human Rights and Equality

Commission; Northern Ireland Human Rights Commission 14 April 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Post-Brexit Transition: Confederation of British Industry
NI; Irish Business and Employers Confederation; Ibec-CBI Northern Ireland
Joint Business Council 24 March 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>United Kingdom Exit from the European Union: Seanad Special Select Committee on the Withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the European Union</u> 10 March 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Brexit Issues: Mr Declan Kearney MLA and Mr Gary Middleton MLA, Junior Ministers, The Executive Office</u> 24 February 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Article 2 of the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland:</u> Executive Office 10 February 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Brexit: Joint Committee on the Implementation of the</u> **Good Friday Agreement** 10 February 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Brexit Issues: Mr Declan Kearney MLA and Mr Gordon</u>
Lyons MLA, Junior Ministers, Executive Office 27 January 2021

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Briefing by Mrs Arlene Foster MLA, First Minister; and Mrs Michelle O'Neill MLA, deputy First Minister</u> 13 January 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Impact of Brexit on the Institutions and North/South,

East-west Relationships: Briefing from the Executive Office and the

North/South Ministerial Council 13 January 2021

Minutes of Evidence: Common Frameworks: Executive Office Briefing
13 January 2021

Concurrent Committee of the Committee for the Economy, Committee for Infrastructure and Committee for Agriculture, Environment and Rural Affairs

Minutes of Evidence: <u>Impact of the Northern Ireland Protocol: Trader Support</u>
<u>Service; Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs</u> 24 March 2021

Northern Ireland Assembly Research and Information Service (RalSe)

EU Exit Hub

- Brexit and Beyond newsletter
- Protocol on Ireland and Northern Ireland webpage
- Common Frameworks webpage
- <u>EU Exit Legislation</u> webpage

Brexit Transition and Northern Ireland: A Reading List (Final version – 31 December 2020)

Brexit and Northern Ireland: A Reading List (Final version - 31 January 2020)

COVID-19 and Brexit: A Reading List 21 May 2020 Research Matters blog: Brexit

 Consent, cross-community support and the Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol 28 July 2021

 Judicial Review of the Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol – Allister (James Hugh) et al's Application AND In the Matter of the Protocol NI[2021] NIQB 64 20 July 2021

- The Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland and Committee scrutiny 18 June 2021
- Gibraltar after the UK's exit from the EU: A comparison with Northern Ireland 08 June 2021
- Update Data Protection Adequacy after the UK's Exit from the EU 07 June 2021
- Northern Ireland's post-Brexit goods trade 25 May 2021
- <u>Dispute resolution under the Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol</u> 23 March 2021
- How is Brexit changing things for our artists? 18 March 2021

Brexit Related Research Publications webpage

- Briefing Paper: <u>Internal Market Act 2020 and the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland</u> 16 April 2021
- Briefing Note: <u>Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol and Net Zero</u> 15 March 2021
- Briefing Paper: <u>UK Freeport policy and the Protocol on Ireland/Northern</u> <u>Ireland</u> 15 January 2021

Senedd Cymru/Welsh Parliament

Brexit webpage

RESEARCH SERVICE

Research Briefing: Environmental governance following Brexit July 2021

UK-EU relations: the responsibilities of new Welsh Ministers 22 June 2021

Wales in the UK 28 May 2021

Is this the Brexit season finale? 12 May 2021

Monitoring Report: Negotiations on the UK's withdrawal from the EU
18 January 2021

Scottish Parliament

SCOTTISH PARLIAMENTARY INFORMATION CENTRE (SPICe)

Post-Brexit Hub

- Common frameworks
- Intergovernmental relations
- Key legislation

The treatment of Scotland's devolved benefits in the EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement 24 March 2021

The treatment of Scotland's devolved benefits in the Withdrawal Agreement 08 February 2021

EU-UK future relationship negotiations: Issue 19 02 February 2021

SPICe Spotlight: EU & International Affairs blog page:

- What is happening with the new Shared Prosperity Fund? 02 June 2021
- Scottish Social Security and Brexit: many complex moving parts
 21 May 2021
- The governance and oversight of the EU-UK Trade and Cooperation
 Agreement What role for the devolved institutions? 16 March 2021
- A Noble Quest: Understanding devolved competence after Brexit
 15 March 2021
- The Brexit deal and UK-EU justice policy 18 February 2021
- Sending and receiving post from the EU what's changed?
 15 February 2021
- What does the UK-EU Deal mean for environmental standards in Scotland? 11 February 2021
- Devolved Social Security after Brexit 08 February 2021
- The UK-EU trade deal and Scotland's exports 03 February 2021
- University research funding and student mobility post-Brexit
 27 January 2021
- What will replace EU structural funds in Scotland after Brexit?
 26 January 2021
- Seafood trade post-Brexit: teething problems or the new normal?
 19 January 2021

- Brexit FAQs: Overview 18 January 2021
- Brexit FAQs: Citizens 18 January 2021
- Brexit FAQs: Transport 18 January 2021
- Brexit FAQs: Health 18 January 2021
- Brexit FAQs: EU law and institutions 18 January 2021
- Brexit FAQs: Fishing, farming and support for business 18 January 2021
- Brexit FAQs: Negotiations (No Deal) 18 January 2021
- Scottish Government Legislative Consent Memorandum for the European Union (Future Relationship) Bill 29 December 2020

4. EU INSTITUTIONS

European Council and Council of the European Union

EU-UK negotiations on the future relationship policy page

News Release: <u>EU-UK trade and cooperation agreement: Council requests</u> <u>European Parliament's consent</u> 26 February 2021

European Commission

Relations with the United Kingdom webpage

The EU-UK Withdrawal Agreement webpage

Non-paper - Medicines and the implementation of the Protocol on Ireland and Northern Ireland 26 July 2021

Non-papers on sanitary and phytosanitary measures 26 July 2021

Statement by Vice-President Maroš Šefčovič following today's announcement by the UK government regarding the Protocol on Ireland / Northern Ireland 21 July 2021

News Release: <u>EU-UK relations: solutions found to help implementation of the Protocol on Ireland and Northern Ireland</u> 30 June 2021

Application of Union Law related to meat products in Northern Ireland after the end of the transition period: Unilateral Declaration by the European Union 30 June 2021

Keynote speech by Vice-President Maroš Šefčovič on "EU-UK relations after Brexit" at the Mario Soares Promotion Closing Ceremony, College of Europe 18 June 2021

Protocol on Ireland / Northern Ireland: Statement by the European
Commission following the UK's request to extend the grace period for chilled
meats 17 June 2021

Press statement by Vice-President Maroš Šefčovič following today's Joint Committee and Partnership Council meetings 09 June 2021

Opening remarks by President von der Leyen at the joint press conference with President Michel following the Special meeting of the European Council of 24 May 2021

Statement by Commission Vice-President Maroš Šefčovič following the conclusion of the EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement 29 April 2021

Speech by President von der Leyen at the European Parliament Plenary on the EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement 27 April 2021

Statement by Vice-President Maroš Šefčovič following his meeting with Lord David Frost 16 April 2021

News Release: Withdrawal Agreement: Commission sends letter of formal notice to the United Kingdom for breach of its obligations under the Protocol on Ireland and Northern Ireland 15 March 2021

Letter from Vice-President Maroš Šefčovič to David Frost, 15 March 2021

Statement by Vice-President Maroš Šefčovič following today's announcement by the UK government regarding the Protocol on Ireland / Northern Ireland 03 March 2021

<u>Joint statement by European Commission Vice-President Maroš Šefčovič and the UK Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster Michael Gove</u> 24 February 2021

<u>Statement by Vice-President Maroš Šefčovič following the General Affairs</u>
<u>Council</u> 23 February 2021

Joint statement by European Commission Vice-President Šefčovič and the UK Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster Gove 11 February 2021

Joint statement by European Commission Vice-President Šefčovič and the UK Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster Gove 03 February 2021

<u>Commission statement on the vaccine export authorisation scheme</u> 29 January 2021

European Parliament

Brexit: Impact and consequences webpage

UK Coordination Group webpage

News Release: Parliament formally approves EU-UK trade and cooperation agreement 28 April 2021

News Release: <u>EP committees recommend giving consent to EU-UK</u> agreement 15 April 2021

News Release: <u>EU-UK deal: next steps in Parliament's scrutiny</u> 03 February 2021

News Release: <u>Lead MEPs welcome new EU-UK agreement but insist on scrutinising it thoroughly</u> 14 January 2021

News Release: <u>Trade MEPs promise thorough scrutiny of the EU-UK agreement</u> 11 January 2021

Brexit deal: how new EU-UK relations will affect you 07 January 2021

European Parliamentary Research Service

Briefing: <u>EU-UK relations: Difficulties in implementing the Northern Ireland</u> <u>Protocol</u> July 2021

First appraisal of the EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement March 2021

In-depth Analysis: <u>EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement: An analytical overview</u> February 2021

Briefing: Excluding Northern Irish imports from EU tariff rate quotas
December 2020

5. COMMENTARY AND ANALYSIS

Brexit Institute (Dublin City University)

Working Papers

<u>Human Rights and the Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol</u> Brian Gormally, 21 July 2021

Brexit and Northern Ireland: A role for the US?

Mary C. Murphy, 16 July 2021

The Legality of the Protocol Rory Montgomery, 09 July 2021

Continuing Reactive and 'Own Goal' Unionism: Time for a more Proactive Strategy Lee McGowan, 08 July 2021

Making the 'Special Arrangement' Work: The 'Good Faith' Implementation of the Protocol Colin Harvey, 10 June 2021

Belfast/Good Friday Agreement and the Erosion of Trust

Lisa Claire Whitten, 30 April 2021

An Uneasy Peace: The Protocol = War! Lee McGowan, 26 April 2021

The Northern Ireland Protocol and the Future of the Union

Eileen Connolly and John Doyle, 09 April 2021

"Don't Mention the Poll": The Good Friday Agreement and À la Carte Consent Donnacha Ó Beacháin, 31 March 2021

A Year in the Life: Lessons on the Resilience of the Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol John Cotter, 31 March 2021

Brexit, Market Adjustment and the Irish Sea Gerard McCann, 29 March 2021

<u>Human Rights and Equality Provisions under the Northern Ireland Protocol</u>
Colin Murray and Clare Rice, 25 March 2021

Northern Ireland, Brexit & Jumping Scales Aoife O'Donoghue, 19 March 2021

Could the European Parliament Kill Off the Brexit Deal?

Francis Jacobs, 18 March 2021

Here we go again? The UK's Unilateral Proposal for the Northern Ireland Protocol Clare Rice, 12 March 2021

Brexit's Graceless Diplomacy Feargal Cochrane, 08 March 2021

From Mutual Trust to Mutual Mistrust: The UK-EU Post-Brexit Relationship Rishi Gulati, 06 March 2021

A new dawn for the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland?

Dagmar Schiek, 05 February 2021

<u>The unexpected cross-over of vaccines, article 16, and the Northern Ireland protocol</u> Daniel Keohane, 03 February 2021

We've finally got a Brexit Deal – But where now for Northern Ireland? Feargal Cochrane, 01 February 2021

New Year, But the Brexit Story is Not Over Federico Fabbrini 04 January 2021

British Irish Chamber of Commerce

News Release: The British Irish Chamber of Commerce urges both the EU and UK to work together to find common ground for a permanent resolution to the Northern Ireland Protocol 11 June 2021

Policy Update: Getting to grips with Change... Paul Lynam, 23 February 2021

The Deal is Done, now we must look to the future January 2021

Carnegie Europe

The Price of Britain's Megaphone Diplomacy with the EU: The coming months may well see more bitterness and friction in UK-EU relations; These tensions threaten to unravel the fragile 1998 Good Friday Agreement, which has largely kept violence at bay in Northern Ireland Peter Kellner, 08 July 2021

The UK and the EU Are Dancing for a Relationship

Peter Kellner, 20 March 2021

Is the Northern Ireland Peace Process at Risk?

David Phinnemore et al, 18 March 2021

Brexit and the Gradual Disintegration of the United Kingdom; Brexit may well contribute to the breaking up of the United Kingdom. Only a brave gambler would bet on both Scotland and Northern Ireland still belonging to the UK in 2040 Peter Kellner, 14 January 2021

Centre for Brexit Policy

News Release: <u>'Sausage wars' threaten peace in Northern Ireland, say British</u> <u>people</u> 11 July 2021

Paper: Correcting the damage caused by the Northern Ireland Protocol: How Mutual Enforcement can solve the Northern Ireland border problem
February 2021 (Includes foreword by The Rt Hon The Lord Trimble, PC)

Centre for Brexit Studies (University of Birmingham)

<u>Cutting Off A Northern Ireland Nose to Spite A Global Face</u> Scott Lucas, 18 June 2021

Polls on Irish Unity are Unreliable Dr Graham Gudgin, 06 May 2021

Slouching Towards the Irish Sea: How the Johnson Government Chose Brexit Failure Scott Lucas, 08 March 2021

Between Hybridity and Hubris: The possible economic effects of the Northern Ireland Protocol Professor Leslie Budd, 02 March 2021

Brexit, Vaccine Nationalism, and the Future of the UK Professor Scott Lucas, 08 February 2021

Northern Ireland - Handle with Care! Dr Steven McCabe, 04 February 2021

How is Brexit impacting food shortages in Northern Ireland? 13 January 2021

Centre for Cross Border Studies

CCBS Submission to the House of Lords European Affairs Sub-Committee on the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland 14 June 2021

Briefing Paper: The future for Agri-food in Northern Ireland and on the island of Ireland May 2021

Briefing Paper: <u>The UK Community Renewal Fund</u> John McStravick and Anthony Soares, April 2021

Quarterly Survey on the conditions for North-South and East-West cooperation: Briefing on the findings from the 1st Quarterly Survey (January to March 2021) Ben Rosher and Anthony Soares, April 2021

CCBS Director attends meeting on the Implementation of the Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol 22 February 2021

Meeting with Co-Chairs of the Withdrawal Agreement Joint Committee to discuss implementation of the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland: Key issues for Centre for Cross Border Studies and Ad-Hoc Group for North-South and East-West Cooperation 18 February 2021

Centre for European Reform

Insight: The US and the Northern Ireland Protocol: Time to walk the walk Sam Lowe, 07 May 2021

Insight: <u>It takes two to tango: The EU and the UK need to work together to make the Northern Ireland protocol work</u> Sam Lowe, 02 February 2021

Committee on the Administration of Justice

Written Evidence to the introductory inquiry of the House of Lords
Sub-Committee on the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland
June 2021

Written Evidence to the Northern Ireland Affairs Committee on its inquiry into 'Citizenship and Passport Processes in Northern Ireland' February 2021

Briefing Note: Post-Brexit access to European Health Insurance Card (EHIC) rights for people in Northern Ireland (NI) January 2021

Congressional Research Service

Northern Ireland: The Peace Process, Ongoing Challenges, and U.S. Interests 18 May 2021

The United Kingdom: Background, Brexit, and Relations with the United States 16 April 2021

Brexit: Overview, Trade, and Northern Ireland 24 March 2021

Constitution Unit – University College London

Working Group on Unification Referendums on the Island of Ireland webpage

Working Group on Unification Referendums on the Island of Ireland: Final Report May 2020

Northern Ireland on the brink, again: the responsibility of London Alan Whysall, 09 April 2021

Northern Ireland in its centenary year: a changing landscape
Alan Whysall, 11 February 2021

Consumer Council

EU Exit: Advice for Northern Ireland consumers on EU Exit

- Travellers
- Shopping
- Postal Services
- Energy
- Telecoms

- Water
- Personal Finances
- Businesses
- Home Energy

EU-UK Forum

The Northern Ireland Protocol and its implementation
David Phinnemore, July 2021

Euractiv

The Brief - It takes EU to tango Benjamin Fox, 23 July 2021

<u>Von der Leyen rejects UK bid to reopen Irish protocol</u> Benjamin Fox, 23 July 2021

<u>EU rejects UK demand for new post-Brexit deal on Northern Ireland</u> 22 July 2021

UK will set out plans to overhaul Irish protocol in weeks, say ministers
Benjamin Fox, 09 July 2021

EU urges UK to accept Swiss-style deal to end agri-food standoff 07 July 2021

<u>Little progress, little time left to resolve Irish customs row, warns UK minister</u> Benjamin Fox, 16 June 2021

<u>Irish ministers worry as tensions mount over NI protocol</u> Paula Kenny, 15 June 2021

UK's sausage row with EU goes from bad to wurst 14 June 2021

Macron plays on EU unity as Brexit row overshadows summit Benjamin Fox, 11 June 2021

War of words intensifies on Northern Ireland Protocol dispute Benjamin Fox, 08 June 2021

France warns UK not to 'play' with Northern Ireland Brexit deal 24 May 2021

<u>UK underestimated impact of Northern Ireland Protocol, concedes Frost</u> Benjamin Fox, 18 May 2021

MEPs lament 'lose-lose' situation as EU Parliament votes Brexit trade pact Benjamin Fox, 28 April 2021

MEPs set date for Brexit vote but warn London 'no new concessions' Benjamin Fox, 22 April 2021

'Uncertain' Brexit deal could see UK bound by EU subsidies rules, lawmakers warn Benjamin Fox, 09 April 2021

Johnson urged to convene all-party talks following riots in Northern Ireland Benjamin Fox, 08 April 2021

Biden backs Northern Ireland peace in virtual Saint Patrick's Day talks
18 March 2021

EU launches lawsuits against UK over Irish border 15 March 2021

Time for Boris to stop 'passing the buck' Dick Roche, 15 March 2021

<u>UK to send Northern Ireland official to woo Biden on EU protocol row</u> Benjamin Fox, 11 March 2021

New Brexit row after UK extends exemption to Irish border checks
Benjamin Fox, 04 March 2021

EU-UK to debate extensions for Irish customs waiver Benjamin Fox, 24 February 2021

UK agrees more time for EU to ratify post-Brexit pact 24 February 2021

Northern Irish Brexit issue is two-way street, says EU's Sefcovic 24 February 2021

Northern Ireland parties take legal action against Brexit deal 22 February 2021

Commission right to call London's bluff Dick Roche, 15 February 2021

<u>EU rejects most UK demands on Northern Ireland trade, concedes on steel</u> 11 February 2021

The Article 16 row is liable to happen again unless lessons are learned John Bruton, 11 February 2021

UK will demand 'refinements' to Irish protocol from EU, says Gove Benjamin Fox, 09 February 2021

The protocol price Benjamin Fox, 09 February 2021

<u>Irish government slaps down UK bid to reopen NI protocol</u> Benjamin Fox, 04 February 2021

A disunited kingdom Dick Roche, 04 February 2021

Northern Ireland's ruling party launches campaign to scrap EU's Brexit border protocol Benjamin Fox, 03 February 2021

Northern Ireland suspends some port checks over staff safety concerns 02 February 2021

EU backs off jab threat in Britain row as WHO warns against 'vaccine nationalism' 30 January 2020

<u>Ireland nets 25% of EU's fund to cover Brexit costs</u> Benjamin Fox, 13 January 2021

Ireland seeks its own 'landbridge' to continental EU 07 January 2021

European Policy Centre

The European Parliament flexes its muscles on the EU-UK trade deal Guillaume Van Der Loo and Merijn Chamon, 05 March 2021

Federal Trust

A United Ireland – An Empty Slogan? Geoffrey Martin, 21 April 2021

Federalism for the United Kingdom: an answer that raises questions
Dr Andrew Blick, 03 March 2021

Global Britain/Brexit-Watch.org

The UK's Protocol demands are months overdue Jayne Adye, 29 July 2021

<u>Lord Frost is fooling no one – and must invoke Article 16 to have credibility</u> Ben Habib, 22 July 2021

The Irish Sea border is not about trade Ben Habib, 16 July 2021

<u>Update on defending the Union of the UK by ending the Northern Ireland</u> <u>Protocol</u> Ben Habib, 07 July 2021

An update on challenging the Northern Ireland Protocol Ben Habib, 02 July 2021

A bittersweet judgment that exposes the UK Government's duplicity on the Union Ben Habib, 01 July 2021

<u>Does Donaldson really have the political skills to ditch the protocol?</u>
Owen Polley, 24 June 2021

Why my heart goes out to the people of Northern Ireland Ben Habib. 22 June 2021

Why would Boris do "Whatever it takes" when he blinked the last time? Jonathan Saxty, 16 June 2021

The protocol must go – and more people now recognise this

Ben Habib, 15 June 2021

A Brexit bangers and mash-up in Northern Ireland?

Jonathan Saxty 09 June 2021

Act of Union 1801: a betrayal 'Hidden in plain sight'

Ian Logan, 27 May 2021

<u>Update on Defending the Union of the UK – ending the Northern Ireland</u>

Protocol Ben Habib, 18 May 2021

"Sandpapering" the protocol won't cut it prime minister

Jonathan Saxty, 21 April 2021

Is more "jaw, jaw" over NI Protocol actually getting anywhere?

Jonathan Saxty, 19 April 2021

There already is a customs border in Ireland, we didn't need a second one

Jonathan Saxty and Brian Monteith, 16 April 2021

Dividing the UK causes anger and unrest! Who would have thunk it?

Owen Polley, 15 April 2021

A judicial review to respect the 1800 Act of Union by ending the Protocol

25 March 2021

Is the UK's unilateral waiver extension the first move against the Protocol?

Jonathan Saxty, 05 March 2021

Neither the Belfast Agreement nor the Irish border justify the Protocol

Edwin Hetherington, 03 March 2021

Momentum grows for ending the NI Protocol

Jonathan Saxty, 22 February 2021

Why we've taken legal steps against HMG on the Northern Ireland Protocol

Ben Habib, Jim Allister and Catharine Hoey, 21 February 2021

More people are wakening up to how bad the Northern Irish Protocol is

Jonathan Saxty, 08 February 2021

Northern Ireland Protocol does the damage Brexiteers predicted

Jonathan Saxty, 03 February 2021

There is now no justification for Britain to abide by the Brexit deal

Jonathan Stanley, 01 February 2021

Making Brexit work will restore our valuable unity

Jonathan Saxty, 26 January 2021

Gove needs to fix avoidable Brexit "teething troubles" or stand condemned

of failure Jonathan Saxty, 18 January 2021

Institute for Government

<u>Trust and compromise needed to change the Northern Ireland protocol</u>
Maddy Thimont Jack, 23 July 2021

Explainer: Northern Ireland protocol: UK-EU Joint Committee points of contention Jess Sargeant, 24 June 2021

Report: The UK internal market: Balancing frictionless trade and regulatory autonomy Jess Sargeant and Maddy Thimont Jack, June 2021

The Northern Ireland protocol needs political movement to succeed Jess Sargeant, 20 May 2021

The UK government must take responsibility for making the Northern Ireland protocol work Jess Sargeant, 15 April 2021

Insight: The end of the Brexit transition period - Was the UK prepared?

Joe Marshall, Maddy Thimont Jack and Nick Jones, March 2021

Cooperation not confrontation should be at the heart of UK-EU discussions on the protocol Jess Sargeant, 05 March 2021

The United Kingdom Internal Market Act 2020 Jess Sargeant and Alex Stojanovic, 11 February 2021

The UK government needs to decide how to manage its post-Brexit relationship with the EU Jill Rutter, 08 February 2021

Managing the UK's relationship with the EU Maddy Thimont Jack and Jill Rutter, 05 February 2021

<u>The article 16 vaccine row is over – but the damage has been done</u> Jess Sargeant, 30 January 2021

Boris Johnson needs answers for the challenges he faces in each part of the UK Jess Sargeant, 28 January 2021

Institute of International and European Affairs

Brexit Brief 115 28 July 2021

Reflections on Ireland, Europe and the 'Northern Ireland Problem' Lisa Claire Whitten, May 2021

Series: Living with Brexit: The Road Ahead

- Brexit and the future of the United Kingdom Paul Gillespie 04 February 2021
- Brexit's implications for fisheries Pat Kehoe, 28 January 2021

Beyond Brexit for Ireland's Transport Sectors
 Tom Ferris, 26 January 2021

- Agriculture and Food Production: The Post-Brexit landscape Con Lucey, 22 January 2021
- A Brexit deal that works for business
 John McGrane, 20 January 2021
- Brexit: Implementing the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland
 Blair Horan, 18 January 2021
- What's in the Deal Sophie Andrews-McCarroll, 13 January 2021

Lawyers for Britain

Legal Opinion: <u>Time to replace the deeply flawed Northern Ireland Protocol</u> Martin Howe, 28 February 2021

Logistics UK (formerly Freight Transport Association)

News Release: Ratification of Withdrawal Agreement will protect trade with the EU, says Logistics UK 28 April 2021

News Release: Logistics UK response to NI grace periods extension 03 March 2021

News Release: Northern Ireland Protocol needs work: Logistics UK meets with UK-EU governments 23 February 2021

News Release: <u>Logistics industry raises Brexit concerns with government</u> 22 January 2021

News Release: <u>Logistics UK comment on reports of disruption to NI-GB trade</u> 08 January 2021

London School of Economics and Political Science

Brexit blog

The Northern Ireland Protocol is currently caught between an untrusting Brussels and an unrealistic London Colin Murray, 17 June 2021

The EU helped to end the armed campaign of the Provisional IRA Darren Litter, 27 April 2021

The UK's union has been fractured by Brexit

Michael Keating, 23 April 2021

The totality of UK-Irish relations is at risk because of Brexit

Darren Litter, 13 April 2021

<u>Understanding the role of European Council summits in reaching the Good</u>
<u>Friday Agreement</u> Darren Litter, 26 March 2021

Forging a new relationship in the crucible of Northern Ireland: why the UK needs the EU to trust it Sydney Nash, 10 March 2021

<u>Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol: the EU must play the long-game</u> Katy Hayward, 04 March 2021

Stop worrying and love the Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol Colin Murray, 04 March 2021

"Free us": the DUP's Northern Ireland Protocol strategy
Clare Rice, 04 February 2021

Article 16 of the Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol offers no 'quick fix' Katy Hayward and David Phinnemore, 11 January 2021

Manufacturing NI

NI Protocol webpage

Brexit News webpage

News Release: <u>First post Brexit survey reveals extent of challenges faced by</u>
NI Manufacturers 11 May 2021

News Release: Apply for authorisation for the UK Trader Scheme if you bring goods into Northern Ireland 25 February 2021

News Release: New documentation requirements for traders moving permitted chilled meats from GB to NI 22 February 2021

Survey Report: NI's Manufacturers and the First Month of the NI Protocol February 2021

Northern Ireland Chamber of Commerce and Industry

News Release: Cause for optimism as NI's economic recovery gathers pace 07 July 2021

News Release: Time to get back to issued based policy making 15 June 2021

News Release: <u>Tough trading conditions hit confidence and investment hard</u> 12 January 2021

News Release: 2021 must provide businesses with the certainty, conditions and support they need to prosper 04 January 2021

Northern Ireland Council for Voluntary Action

Brexit and the impact on data transfer Déarbhla Sloan, 19 March 2021

Northern Ireland Retail Consortium

News Release: Act now to prevent NI disruption, say supermarket CEOs

18 July 2021

News Release: NIRC reacts to grace period extension on chilled meats

30 June 2021

What the Brexit deal means for Northern Ireland

Aodhán Connolly, 08 April 2021

Northern Slant

Brexit, borders and belonging John Stevenson, 10 February 2021

The long way home: Finding a way through the Brexit debacle?

Duncan Morrow, 04 February 2021

The Long and Winding Road: Northern Irish Parties and Europe Conor Kelly, 02 February 2021

Queen's University Belfast

Brexit Filestore

Post-Brexit Governance NI

- The Protocol, EU and domestic law webpage
- The Institutional Framework for Managing the Protocol webpage
- Explainer: <u>Trade in Goods under the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland</u>
 Billy Melo Araujo, 14 June 2021
- <u>Testing The Temperature 2: What do voters in Northern Ireland think</u> <u>about the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland?</u> David Phinnemore, Katy Hayward, Lisa Whitten and Billy Melo Araujo, June 2021
- Testing the Temperature 1: What do voters in Northern Ireland think about the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland? Katy Hayward, Billy Melo Araujo, David Phinnemore and Lisa Whitten, April 2021

QPOL – Queen's Policy Engagement

- Hamming it up: sausage wars, porky pies and party roastings
 Milena Komarova, Katy Hayward and Ben Rosher
- Post-Brexit Clinic 30 June 2021
- No break-up, but break out: upheaval in Northern Irish borderlands
 Dr Ulrike M Vieten, 23 June 2021
- 100 Years On: Something Old, Something New... Milena Komarova, Katy Hayward and Ben Rosher, 18 May 2021
- Northern Ireland Voters and the Protocol Professor Katy Hayward and Professor David Phinnemore, 27 April 2021
- And This is How it Ends? An Irish Borders Trajectory
 Professor Cathal McCall, 26 April 2021
- Post-Brexit Clinic 21 April 2021
- A touch of Frost to a heated atmosphere: Weeks 6-12 of implementing the Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland Milena Komarova, Katy Hayward and Ben Rosher, 01 April 2021
- The EU's Bad Friday Announcement; The EU-UK vaccine row has repoliticised the Northern Ireland Protocol and damaged the prospects for its smooth implementation Professor David Phinnemore, 26 February 2021
- <u>Predictable uncertainty: The first six weeks under the Protocol on</u>
 <u>Ireland/Northern Ireland</u> Katy Hayward, Milena Komarova and Ben Rosher,
 25 February 2021
- Post-Brexit Clinic 16 February 2021
- What the UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement means for Northern Ireland Professor Katy Hayward, 04 January 2020

Retail NI

News Release: <u>Groupage Consignments - Moving Goods from Great Britain</u> (GB) to Northern Ireland (NI) 29 January 2021

Slugger O'Toole

In coming to the only realistic deal on medicines the EU admits Protocol is a work in progress Mick Fealty 08 July 2021

Northern Ireland needs a Protocol it can use and not be used by...
Terry Wright, 07 July 2021

The Northern Ireland Protocol: The High Court has its say

Sarah Creighton, 01 July 2021

Summary of High Court ruling on the NI Protocol

Jay Burbank, 30 June 2021

How the NI Protocol protects the Agreement Brendan Heading, 26 June 2021

Poots puts down a (removable) marker on the future improvement of the NI Protocol... Mick Fealty, 22 June 2021

Getting to the nub of the NI Protocol and the deeply problematic East West market... Peter Shirlow, 12 June 2021

The NI Protocol is shaky ground upon which to build a better future Terry Wright, 11 April 2021

Article 16: "the political equivalent of telling a delinquent pupil they can only get out of a locked classroom by setting it alight..." Mick Fealty, 10 April 2021

Brexit breakthrough on the protocol? Try this for size

Brian Walker, 29 March 2021

The games people play; Protocol runs into Extra Time...

Terry Wright on 20 March 20 2021

The latest real world effects of the protocol standoff

Brian Walker, 18 March 2021

Boris Johnson has refused Arlene Foster on the protocol. Both governments and the EU should now get off their high horses and fix it

Brian Walker, 13 March 2021

The EU needs to face up to the truth that the GFA is being undermined in spirit and context Terry Wright, 05 March 2021

If this is a crisis, it's a manageable one that requires statesmanship, not panic Mick Fealty, 05 March 2021

<u>Despite its problems the Protocol puts opportunity in the hands of NI's</u> politicians more than ever before Mick Fealty, 27 February 2021

NI Protocol vs Act of Union: another Unionist strategic misstep looms
Brendan Heading, 21 February 2021

Loyalism's Response to the Northern Ireland Protocol...

Michael Palmer, 18 February 2021

Northern Ireland, the Protocol and our bumpy ride on the vagaries of market regulations... Mick Fealty, 12 February 2021

<u>Leading constitutional expert backs DUP objections to the Protocol</u>

Brian Walker, 06 February 2021

<u>Unionism's Approach To The NI Protocol Is Disappointing But Not Surprising...</u> Stephen Donnan-Dalzell, 06 February 2021

<u>Time for a more equitable tune between the two parts of Ireland, the UK and Europe?</u> Terry Wright, 30 January 2021

Brexit: it's time to stop gloating and start making some money...

Brian O'Neill, 25 January 2021

George Osborne: Northern Ireland is already heading for the exit door...

Brian O'Neill, 20 January 2021

The Conversation

<u>Irish sea border: trust is the biggest problem for the Northern Ireland</u> <u>protocol</u> Katy Hayward, 12 July 2021

Political frustration in Northern Ireland has heightened tension around 'marching season' Ger FitzGerald, 08 July 2021

Why are British sausages being blocked from entry into Northern Ireland?

The dispute explained Billy Melo Araujo, 11 June 2021

Northern Ireland: the politics behind the riots David Mitchell, 12 April 2021

COVID vaccines and Brexit borders: what is happening in Northern Ireland? Peter John McLoughlin

Brexit trade problems: what's gone wrong and can it be fixed?

Billy Melo Araujo, 14 January 2021

The UK in a Changing Europe (ESRC)

Protocol on Northern Ireland: if Britain wants to resolve it, this is not the way to do it Professor Anand Menon and Jill Rutter, 27 Jul 2021

<u>Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland and the new command paper</u> Professor Katy Hayward, 26 July 2021

<u>Sir Jeffery Donaldson and the DUP: parties, polls and promises</u> Lisa Claire Whitten, 07 July 2021

What does Brexit mean for Northern Ireland?

Professor David Phinnemore, 25 Jun 2021

The precarious position of Northern Ireland

Professor Katy Hayward, 25 June 2021

The Trade and Cooperation Agreement: a 'British approach'?

Darren Litter, 24 June 2021

An Irish border in four acts Professor Cathal McCall, 22 June 2021

Delivering Brexit: where are we now? Professor Catherine Barnard, 16 June 2021

Brexit, Biden and the Northern Ireland Protocol

Professor Anand Menon, 12 June 2021

Working Paper: Will the United Kingdom survive the United Kingdom Internal Market Act? Professor Stephen Weatherill, 07 May 2021

Northern Ireland voters and the Protocol Professor Katy Hayward and Professor David Phinnemore, 23 April 2021

Riots in Northern Ireland: an explanation Dr Clare Rice, 16 Apr 2021

Turning up the heat on Northern Ireland Professor Katy Hayward 12 Apr 2021

The Irish border: why the US will not back down

Dr Adam Quinn, 25 March 2021

Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland: act jointly one day, unilaterally the next

Professor David Phinnemore, 05 March 2021

Whittling down the Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol

Colin Murray, 05 March 2021

The DUP and the Protocol Dr Jamie Pow, 10 Feb 2021

The politics of the Northern Ireland Protocol Lisa Whitten, 09 February 2021

Explainer: Article 16 of the Northern Ireland Protocol

Dr Clare Rice, 08 February 2021

UK-EU relations: challenging start is a sign of things to come

Professor Anand Menon, 05 Feb 2021

Report: Brexit and Beyond 19 January 2021. Includes 'Northern Ireland' by Katy

Hayward and 'British-Irish Relations' by Etain Tannam

What the Brexit deal means for Northern Ireland

Aodhán Connolly, 31 December 2020

What Brexit means for Britain's borders Professor Katy Hayward,

31 December 2020

<u> Ulster Farmers' Union</u>

News Release: UFU meet Lord Frost and NI Secretary of State

02 June 2021

News Release: Dismay as NI farmers overlooked 15 March 2021

News Release: <u>UK and EU agree to minimise trade friction between GB and NI</u> 19 February 2021

News Release: <u>UFU supportive of UK EU alignment on agri-food standards</u> 17 February 2021

Ulster University

Economic Policy Centre and others – Report: <u>The Dublin-Belfast Economic Corridor: Current Profile, Potential for Recovery & Opportunities for Cooperation</u> March 2021

6. MEDIA COVERAGE

Irish Times, 29 July 2021

Lords committee urges Britain and EU to resolve differences over NI protocol; New cross-party group calls for negotiation and accuses both sides of lack of flexibility Denis Staunton

News Letter, 29 July 2021

Irish Sea border: NI could be 'permanent casualty' of Brexit if protocol not addressed; The Northern Ireland Protocol risks becoming a constant irritant in future EU/UK relations unless both sides change their "fundamentally flawed" approaches to resolving the dispute, peers have found

BBC News, 29 July 2021

Brexit: EU and UK criticised for 'flawed' protocol approach John Campbell

News Letter, 28 July 2021

This is a radical UK plan to overturn the protocol; If any unionists doubted the commitment of Boris Johnson to Northern Ireland, they should read last week's White Paper on the Northern Ireland Protocol Graham Gudgin

Irish Times, 28 July 2021

EU pauses legal action against UK over Northern Ireland protocol; Move follows British government's call last week for a 'standstill period' Naomi O'Leary

Civil Service World, 28 July 2021

UK and EU prepare for September 'pressure point' over Northern Ireland protocol; EU has paused legal action against the UK over its decision to take unilateral action on the protocol to create 'necessary space' for negotiations Adam Payne

The Independent, 27 July 2021

Brexit: EU pauses legal action over 'serious' UK breach of Northern Ireland protocol; Commission halting proceedings 'in order to provide the necessary space to reflect' upon UK proposals Andy Gregory

BBC News, 27 July 2021

Brexit: EU publishes proposals to simplify NI Protocol John Campbell

Irish News, 26 July 2021

<u>Professor Peter Shirlow: Protocol is best opportunity in generation for peace dividend</u> John Manley

The Guardian, 26 July 2021

<u>UK rejects EU's Northern Ireland moves, saying Brexit deal must be</u>
<u>renegotiated; Downing Street says Brussels overtures are insufficient and</u>
'comprehensive' solutions needed Daniel Boffey

Belfast Telegraph, 24 July 2021

Boris Johnson prepared to trigger Article 16 if EU does not renegotiate
Northern Ireland Protocol Ralph Hewitt

News Letter, 24 July 2021

Warning that NI Protocol will block 2,000 generic drugs from NI Mark Rainey

Belfast Telegraph, 23 July 2021

Brexit: EU chief tells Johnson 'we will not renegotiate' over Northern Ireland;
Ursula von der Leyen said Brussels would be 'creative and flexible'
Sam Blewett and Geraldine Scott

The Independent, 23 July 2021

EU boss rejects UK demand for renegotiation of Brexit deal in call with Boris Johnson; Threat to tear up Northern Ireland Protocol not off table, Downing Street indicates Andrew Woodcock

News Letter, 22 July 2021

This is too little, too late from Lord Frost on the Northern Ireland Protocol Ben Habib

RTÉ News, 22 July 2021

The 5 key protocol concessions Britain is seeking from EU Sean Whelan

The Independent, 22 July 2021

Northern Ireland protocol clash risks 'inevitable' UK-EU trade war, officials fear; Trade spat could escalate to the imposition of retaliatory tariffs on all British exports to the EU Anna Isaac

News Letter, 21 July 2021

Article 16 of NI Protocol will not be triggered, for now - Brandon Lewis
Andrew Quinn

Irish Times, 21 July 2021

Britain's demand on NI protocol is audacious and certain to be rejected;

Johnson hopes taking Article 16 threat away will create space for negotiation

Denis Staunton

The Independent, 19 July 2021

Brexit deal is contradictory and its contents are a 'matter for debate', says
UK chief negotiator David Frost; Lord Frost personally led the team that
negotiated the Northern Ireland protocol but now wants it changed
Jon Stone
Irish Times, 18 July 2021

NI supermarkets call for action to prevent Brexit trade disruption; Retailers say they will face increased cost and complexity when moving goods

Belfast Telegraph, 16 July 2021

Protocol is 'solution' to Brexit issues – Ursula von der Leyen; The European Commission president made the comments during a visit to Dublin Cate McCurry

The Independent, 09 July 2021

Northern Ireland Protocol agreed with EU by Boris Johnson is 'not definitive', says Brexit minister Andrew Woodcock

BBC News, 08 July 2021

NI Protocol: PM is taking people in NI as fools – Starmer Emma Vardy

BBC News, 08 July 2021

Brexit: Government to publish NI Protocol plans in July

RTÉ News, 08 July 2021

Starmer accuses Johnson of being 'reckless' towards NI

News Letter, 07 July 2021

Boris Johnson attacks EU over implementation of Northern Ireland Protocol Gavin Cordon

Irish Times, 06 July 2021

Martin says 'window of opportunity' exists for agreement on Northern Ireland protocol; Sources in Brussels and Dublin say mood in EU is deteriorating despite granting of further grace period on import of chilled meats Pat Leahy

RTÉ News, 06 July 2021

Sefcovic says EU may step up legal action against UK Tony Connelly

News Letter, 05 July 2021

Opinion: Unionists might have to learn to live with the protocol Alex Kane

Irish Times, 04 July 2021

Coveney says Britain showing 'no generosity' in protocol row with EU Brian Hutton

The Guardian, 04 July 2021

UK-EU relations deteriorate again after 'strange' David Frost remarks; Irish foreign minister hits out at Brexit minister over provocative article on Northern Ireland protocol Lisa O'Carroll

Irish Times, 02 July 2021

We must find a new balance in how NI protocol is operated; To simply say it must be implemented in full does not deal with the reality that now exists

David Frost and Brandon Lewis

Belfast Telegraph, 01 July 2021

Ruling confirms damage done to our place in UK, claim unionists; Legal case fails after judge finds Protocol lawful and says Brexit legislation overrides Act of Union Jonathan McCambridge

Belfast Telegraph, 01 July 2021

What does the High Court ruling mean for the Northern Ireland Protocol?
Ralph Hewitt

BBC News, 30 June 2021

Brexit: EU postpones ban on British meat sales in NI

The Guardian, 30 June 2021

EU agrees to delay Brexit meat checks in Northern Ireland; Decision allows continued movement of chilled meat products between Great Britain and Northern Ireland until 30 September Jennifer Rankin

BBC News, 30 June 2021

Brexit: NI Protocol is lawful, High Court rules John Campbell

The Independent, 30 June 2021

Brexit: High Court throws out bid to overturn deal for Northern Ireland as unlawful Rob Merrick

RTÉ News, 30 June 2021

Belfast court throws out challenge by unionists to NI Protocol

News Letter, 30 June 2021

NI Protocol conflicts with the Act of Union – but is not unlawful, Belfast High Court rules in blow to unionist leaders Sam McBride

The Independent, 30 June 2021

Northern Ireland voters evenly split over post-Brexit protocol, poll finds Rebecca Black

RTÉ News, 29 June 2021

EU to confirm three-month extension to NI chilled meats grace period Tony Connelly

News Letter, 29 June 2021

<u>EU signals major softening on Irish Sea border rules for medicines as it</u> agrees to change its legislation Sam McBride

Evening Standard, 28 June 2021

EU listening to unionist concerns over NI Protocol, says Sefcovic; The European Commission vice president was told that not one unionist in the Stormont Assembly consented to the post-Brexit mechanism Rebecca Black

News Letter, 28 June 2021

<u>Jeffrey Donaldson warning as EU Chief Maros Sefcovic is grilled by MLAs today on NI Protocol</u> Philip Bradfield

Belfast Telegraph, 27 June 2021

Taoiseach insists he is listening to unionist concerns over NI Protocol;

Micheal Martin was responding to criticism from incoming DUP leader Sir

Jeffrey Donaldson, who accused his government of protocol 'cheerleading'

David Young

RTÉ News, 26 June 2021

The Long Game: David Frost's vision of Brexit Tony Connelly

Irish News, 25 June 2021

<u>EU willing to 'reach an accommodation' on Protocol, says Micheál Martin</u> James Ward and Michelle Devane

The Guardian, 24 June 2021

Editorial: The Guardian view on Northern Ireland: Boris Johnson isn't bothered

Irish News, 23 June 2021

'Struggle for the soul of Ulster loyalism' as concerns grow over escalation in anti-protocol tension Connla Young

Belfast Telegraph, 20 June 2021

Ireland prepared to 'go the extra mile' to find Protocol fixes, Varadkar says; However, the deputy Irish premier ruled out abandoning it altogether, saying all of the 'realistic alternatives' have been rejected by Unionism James Ward

Irish News, 18 June 2021

UK asks EU to suspend an imminent ban on the sale of British sausages in Northern Ireland to give both sides 'breathing space'

Belfast Telegraph, 18 June 2021

No alternative to Protocol, warns EU as UK seeks an extension David Hughes

BBC News, 18 June 2021

Realty Check: Brexit: Can the UK and the EU reach a deal on Northern

Ireland? Chris Morris

MailOnline, 16 June 2021

Boris Johnson warns the EU the UK will take the 'necessary steps' to reduce trade friction with Northern Ireland unless Brussels agrees to compromise on post-Brexit rules as Lord Frost says 'time is running out' to find solutions Jack Maidment

News Letter, 15 June 2021

Business groups urge UK and EU to sort out Protocol issues

Irish News, 15 June 2021

Loyalists may hold 'mass' protocol protest in Dublin Connla Young

News Letter, 15 June 2021

<u>EU would 'react firmly' to UK unilateral action, Irish commissioner says</u> Michelle Devane

Irish News, 14 June 2021

<u>Boris Johnson "well aware" protocol would involve new checks – Macron</u> Ryan McAleer

Irish Times, 14 June 2021

<u>European leaders confront Boris Johnson over failure to implement NI protocol; Dublin worries EU-UK diplomatic clash could inflame tensions in the North Denis Staunton, Pat Leahy</u>

The Guardian, 14 June 2021

The Northern Ireland protocol isn't perfect – but the UK and EU can make it work; The wrangling over the agreement will end if both sides honour their commitment to pragmatism David Phinnemore

RTÉ News. 14 June 2021

Biden's 'candid' message to Johnson on Northern Ireland Brexit row
Brian O'Donovan

News Letter, 13 June 2021

Martin: The UK pushing back Brexit grace time 'a problem'

The Guardian, 13 June 2021

Cynical, shameful and disastrous: Johnson's handling of Northern Ireland Adrian Ward

BBC News, 13 June 2021

G7 summit: Northern Ireland part of one great indivisible UK, says PM

The Independent, 13 June 2021

<u>'Sausage war' tensions heightened as Boris Johnson says he 'will not hesitate' to</u> suspend protocol Andrew Woodcock

Sunday Independent, 13 June 2021

Northern Ireland Protocol: Johnson puts the blame on EU and threatens to 'suspend rules' Jill Lawless

The Guardian, 12 June 2021

Ignored, bullied, patronised: why loyalists in Northern Ireland say no to Brexit 'betrayal' Rory Carroll

Irish News, 12 June 2021

Taoiseach Micheál Martin says protocol doesn't undermine the north's constitutional status or the principle of consent John Manley

BBC News, 12 June 2021

Brexit: What's the Northern Ireland Protocol and why is President Biden concerned? Tom Edgington and Chris Morris

RTÉ News, 11 June 2021

Imperative to protect institutions of Good Friday Agreement, says Taoiseach Vincent Kearney

RTÉ News, 11 June 2021

<u>EU to take 'measured response' on protocol moves by UK</u> Tony Connelly

News Letter, 10 June 2021

<u>David Trimble tells Joe Biden that EU 'intransigence' on NI Protocol</u> threatens Good Friday Agreement Philip Bradfield

Irish Times, 10 June 2021

Johnson claims there is 'complete harmony' between UK and US over protocol; Leaders say they are 'fully committed' to the Good Friday Agreement Denis Staunton

Belfast Telegraph, 10 June 2021

<u>PUP chief Billy Hutchinson: NI Protocol protests may become violent</u> Gareth Cross

RTÉ News. 10 June 2021

Biden, Johnson 'agree to protect Good Friday Agreement'

Irish Times, 10 June 2021

<u>Patience with UK wearing 'very thin', says Sefcovic after Brexit talks end</u> with no result Denis Staunton

RTÉ News, 10 June 2021

Biden intervention in NI Protocol row 'significant' - Taoiseach

Irish Times, 10 June 2021

Biden can 'see through spin and fog' from London on NI protocol, Coveney says Vivienne Clarke, Naomi O'Leary, Pat Leahy

News Letter, 09 June 2021

Edwin Poots says government should 'unilaterally protect Northern Ireland' if EU refuse to scrap NI Protocol

The Guardian, 09 June 2021

<u>EU-UK talks on Northern Ireland appear close to collapse on eve of G7;</u>
<u>'Patience wearing very thin,' says EU negotiator, while Joe Biden expected to raise 'deep concerns' about issue at summit Lisa O'Carroll and Peter Walker</u>

The Independent, 09 June 2021

<u>EU threatens to suspend parts of Brexit agreement and warns 'patience</u> wearing thin'; <u>Brussels ready to slap tariffs and quotas on UK exports – and even to 'suspend cooperation in certain sectors'</u> Rob Merrick

Irish Times, 09 June 2021

<u>EU shoots down suggestion Ireland could be shut out of single market</u> Naomi O'Leary

The Independent, 09 June 2021

EU-UK talks fail to break deadlock on Northern Ireland Brexit checks; Brexit minister Lord Frost accused Brussels of taking a 'purist' approach to the implementation of the Northern Ireland Protocol Gavin Cordon

Daily Telegraph, 08 June 2021

The UK and EU must sing from the same hymn sheet when it comes to
Northern Ireland; We in Brussels have shown a willingness to be flexible but
we will not hesitate to act to ensure international law is obeyed
Maroš Šefčovič

News Letter, 08 June 2021

NI Protocol: LCC warns Maros Sefcovic of 'people power overthrowing tyranny' Philip Bradfield

BBC News, 07 June 2021

Brexit: UK government knew NI Protocol 'was a bad deal' John Campbell

Belfast Telegraph, 06 June 2021

Brexit minister admits UK 'underestimated' impact of NI protocol in call for fix John Daly

BBC News, 06 June 2021

Brexit minister accuses EU of 'legal purism' over NI Protocol John Campbell

Irish Times, 05 June 2021

Editorial: <u>The Irish Times view on the Northern Ireland protocol: a chance to</u> break the deadlock

RTÉ News. 05 June 2021

Bad faith and brinkmanship: NI Protocol on the edge Tony Connelly

RTÉ News, 04 June 2021

EU pessimism grows over any NI protocol breakthrough Tony Connelly

Belfast Telegraph, 03 June 2021

Opinion: Only if implemented in a pragmatic and proportionate way by EU can protocol support the peace process Lord Frost and Brandon Lewis MP

Irish Times, 03 June 2021

EU could retaliate against Britain over protocol, Coveney warns Denis Staunton

BBC News, 02 June 2021

<u>Brexit minister reiterates belief that NI Protocol is 'unsustainable'</u> John Campbell

Irish Times, 02 June 2021

Northern Ireland faces 'turbulent few months' over Brexit, says Varadkar Simon Carswell

News Letter, 30 May 2021

EU not using N Ireland to punish UK for Brexit, EC vice-president claims
Rebecca Black

BBC News, 30 May 2021

Poots: European Union treating NI as a political plaything Mark Simpson

The Guardian, 30 May 2021

<u>EU Commission calls on UK to ditch ideology over Northern Ireland protocol</u> Aubrey Allegretti

Irish Times, 27 May 2021

Northern Ireland 'sacrificed' in Brexit deal, House of Lords committee told; Loyalist leader claims nationalist interests were 'carefully safeguarded' Freya McClements

BBC News 26 May 2021

NI Protocol: Brussels 'must use common sense', says UK

The Independent, 26 May 2021

Northern Ireland tensions are inevitable consequence of Brexit, EU chief suggests; Problems 'do not come from the protocol,' says Ursula von der Leyen Adam Forrest

The Guardian, 25 May 2021

UK hits back at Von der Leyen over Northern Ireland protocol Daniel Boffey

Belfast Telegraph, 24 May 2021

Food firms are hiring experts to solve NI's Brexit trade problems;
Consultants being paid top rates to help businesses deal with supply chain issues Christopher Leebody

RTÉ News, 22 May 2021

<u>Head-on collision: Hardening British rhetoric and the NI Protocol</u> Tony Connelly

Irish News, 20 May 2021

<u>UK ministers 'have shocking lack of knowledge about Northern Ireland</u> <u>Protocol', Westminster committees told</u> Jonathan McCambridge

The Independent, 20 May 2021

UK failed to secure the Brexit deal it wanted for Northern Ireland, David Frost admits; 'We expected there would be a trusted trader scheme, an equivalence mechanism....none of that we've got' Rob Merrick

BBC News, 18 May 2021

Brexit: 'No breach' of legislation through NI Protocol John Campbell

RTÉ News, 18 May 2021

UK considers using force majeure over NI protocol Tony Connelly

The Independent, 17 May 2021

<u>UK proposes new Brexit Irish Sea border checks on food be phased in starting with meat Jon Stone</u>

BBC News, 17 May 2021

Brexit: NI Protocol 'incompatible with EU law' John Campbell

Irish News, 17 May 2021

British government pledges to prevent Irish Sea border are "utterly inconsistent" with the impact of the NI Protocol

RTÉ News, 17 May 2021

Government concerned over hostile UK tone towards NI Protocol Tony Connelly

News Letter, 16 May 2021

Irish Sea border: UK tells EU it needs a 'rapid' fix for NI Protocol; Brexit minister Lord Frost has threatened that the UK could soon take drastic action over the post-Brexit agreement on Northern Ireland over concerns about violence and disruption.

Evening Standard, 14 May 2021

Northern Ireland Protocol 'like Vichy regime', High Court told

Jonathan McCambridge

Belfast Telegraph, 12 May 2021

<u>Loyalist group holds meeting with Brexit minister and Secretary of State</u> <u>over issues with NI Protocol</u> Andrew Madden BBC News, 12 May 2021

Brexit minister says NI Protocol operation is 'not sustainable' John Campbell

RTÉ News, 10 May 2021

Pressure to find NI Protocol solution by June - Coveney Tony Connelly

The Independent, 08 May 2021

Brexit: More Northern Ireland trade disruption Iooms as EU rejects UK compromise plan Jon Stone

RTÉ News, 07 May 2021

EU rejects UK compromise over Northern Ireland Protocol Tony Connelly

Irish News, 07 May 2021

Survey: Just 18 per cent of manufacturers want protocol scrapped despite post-Brexit impact Ryan McAleer

Belfast Telegraph, 06 May 2021

Majority of NI manufacturers 'suffer negative impact' at beginning of Brexit John Mulgrew

News Letter, 04 May 2021

Stormont Agriculture Minister Edwin Poots threatens legal action over NI Protocol Rebecca Black

Irish Times, 03 May 2021

<u>EU and UK to ease protocol rules on guide dogs, plant declarations, animal tags</u> Naomi O'Leary

News Letter, 03 May 2021

<u>Top Orangeman Mervyn Gibson: New DUP leader must be ready to collapse</u> <u>Stormont</u> Adam Kula

News Letter, 27 April 2021

Solutions can be found to issues around NI Protocol says Republic's Foreign Affairs Minister Simon Coveney Philip Bradfield

Daily Mail, 27 April 2021

EU chief Ursula von der Leyen warns the UK the Brexit trade deal has 'real teeth' and Brussels 'will not hesitate' to punish Britain if Boris Johnson breaks its terms amid rumbling row over Northern Ireland Protocol Jack Maidment

The Guardian, 26 April 2021

Boris Johnson is warned of 'dangerous political vacuum' in Northern Ireland; Letter from four former secretaries of state says Brexit's damage to peace process must be addressed Rory Carroll

BBC News, 26 April 2021

Boris Johnson urged to 'step up' to tackle recent NI rioting

The Guardian, 26 April 2021

Opinion: Without pragmatism, the protocol will poison Northern Irish politics
Peter Shirlow

Belfast Telegraph, 23 April 2021

MEPs set to approve Brexit trade agreement Sarah Collins

Belfast Telegraph, 22 April 2021

Brexit NI Protocol threatens supply of medication and medical devices, warns Swann Lisa Smyth

RTÉ News, 22 April 2021

North-South meeting wasn't your average get-together Vincent Kearney

Belfast Telegraph, 21 April 2021

Poll results on NI Protocol on knife edge as 47% say it should be kept Suzanne Breen

The Guardian, 21 April 2021

<u>People across Northern Ireland fear that the protocol will damage political</u> <u>stability</u> Katy Hayward and David Phinnemore

The Herald, 21 April 2021

<u>Checks proposed for Irish land border will not solve sea border issues, MPs told</u> Stephen Mcilkenny

Belfast Telegraph, 21 April 2021

<u>Crisis of confidence: Government has a lot to do to win back our trust</u>

David Phinnemore and Katy Hayward

The Guardian, 20 April 2021

Brexit: Johnson says UK trying to cut 'ludicrous' Northern Ireland checks
Lisa O' Carroll

BBC News, 20 April 2021

Brexit: Boris Johnson promises to end GB-NI trade barriers

Irish News, 17 April 2021

<u>Protocol is only way to avoid hard border in Ireland says European</u> Commission

RTÉ News, 17 April 2021

NI Protocol: Riots, risk-management and the tortured arc of Brexit

Tony Connelly

Belfast Telegraph, 16 April 2021

NI's trade with Republic booming since Brexit Sarah Collins

RTÉ News, 16 April 2021

EU and UK officials to look at making NI Protocol 'less burdensome'
Tony Connelly

Belfast Telegraph, 15 April 2021

Permanent facilities for Brexit checks at NI ports will not be ready 'until 2023'
David Young

The Independent, 15 April 2021

Brexit: UK and EU identify 27 outstanding Northern Ireland-related issues
Adam Forrest

RTÉ News, 14 April 2021

UK seeks more time to respond to EU legal action on NI Protocol

Tony Connelly

Irish News, 13 April 2021

Challenge to NI Protocol to be heard next month

Irish News, 13 April 2021

'Significant differences' remain over NI Protocol despite renewed UK/EU talks Bimpe Archer

Daily Express, 08 April 2021

Northern Ireland Protocol faces further opposition from loyalists as protests continue Alexander Green

Belfast Telegraph, 07 April 2021

Northern Ireland Protocol blasted as 'totally disproportionate'; First Minister Arlene Foster has called for a 'realistic and sustainable' replacement Rebecca Black

The Independent, 07 April 2021

Northern Ireland protocol: Critics and protesters 'offer no alternative', says EU ambassador Adam Forrest

Irish Times, 01 April 2021

Taoiseach calls for 'reset' of UK-EU relations to solve Brexit issues

BBC News, 31 March 2021

Brexit: UK delivers NI Protocol 'road map' to the EU Colm Kelpie

Irish News, 31 March 2021

<u>Call to replace EU health scheme for Northern Ireland waiting list patients</u> <u>following its Brexit axe</u> Seanín Graham

Belfast Telegraph, 25 March 2021

Crowdfunding appeal launched for protocol legal challenge; Unionists are proposing judicial review proceedings unless alternative post-Brexit trade arrangements are put in place Rebecca Black

News Letter, 24 March 2021

<u>Urgent solutions needed to challenges on trade between NI and GB, warns</u> top business group Rebecca Black

The Guardian, 23 March 2021

EU keen to resume Brexit talks to end Northern Ireland row; Trade bloc indicates desire to ease tensions with UK over alleged breach of protocol Lisa O'Carroll

Irish News, 22 March 2021

<u>Loyalist Communities Council wants Stormont collapsed if protocol isn't removed</u>

RTÉ News, 22 March 2021

DUP minister rejects party considering collapsing Stormont over NI Protocol

BBC News. 21 March 2021

The EU healthcare option that ended with Brexit Eimear Flanagan

Belfast Telegraph, 20 March 2021

Unionist fury over Protocol 'puts NI in a dangerous place'

Christopher Leebody

Irish Times, 19 March 2021

<u>UK government advising businesses in North to breach law, says Sefcovic</u> Naomi O'Leary

RTÉ News, 19 March 2021

NI Secretary concerned over stability of Executive

Evening Standard, 18 March 2021

GB suppliers deciding that trading in NI is now 'too much hassle'; The managing director of a leading NI food service company told MPs he was moving several supply chains to the Irish Republic and continental Europe David Young

BBC News. 18 March 2021

British exports to Ireland fall by almost €1bn John Campbell

BBC News, 17 March 2021

<u>Irish Sea Border: Brexit 'forces' NI supplier to buy less from GB</u> John Campbell

Irish Independent, 16 March 2021

'No alternative' - EU begins legal action against UK over Northern Ireland protocol Sarah Collins and Amy Blaney

The Guardian, 15 March 2021

EU launches legal action over UK plan to extend Brexit grace period; Letter alleging infringement of Northern Ireland protocol issued on Monday Lisa O'Carroll

RTÉ News, 15 March 2021

US urges UK and EU to preserve Good Friday Agreement

Brian O'Donovan

The Independent, 14 March 2021

Brexit news: Biden to discuss Northern Ireland with Taoiseach, as UK 'deliberately broke trust with EU' Liam James and Peter Stubley

RTÉ News, 13 March 2021

UK's move in extending grace period 'damaging' - Coveney

Irish News. 11 March 2021

Coveney briefs members of US Congress on Brexit Suzanne McGonagle

The Independent, 10 March 2021

Northern Ireland secretary fails to explain legal basis for shelving post-Brexit Irish Sea checks Rob Merrick

RTÉ News, 10 March 2021

Lewis: UK govt committed to implementing NI Protocol as EU legal action looms

Irish Independent, 08 March 2021

Hauliers use Northern Ireland as 'back door' for UK imports Sarah Collins

News Letter, 07 March 2021

Chief Brexit negotiator Lord Frost insists NI Protocol grace period relaxations are lawful Benjamin Cooper

Irish News, 06 March 2021

EU says British government's unilateral moves make solutions 'more tricky'

BBC News, 06 March 2021

Brexit: Further trade rules relaxed between GB and NI John Campbell

Belfast Telegraph, 05 March 2021

Viewpoint: Loyalist letter is a cause for concern

Irish News, 05 March 2021

British government accused of 'extreme bad faith' over extension of Irish Sea border grace periods John Manley

Irish Times, 05 March 2021

Brussels to launch legal action against UK 'very soon' over NI protocol move; Sefcovic says European Commission already working on 'infringement proceedings'

BBC News, 04 March 2021

Brexit: EU legal action imminent over UK extension to grace periods John Campbell

News Letter, 04 March 2021

Brandon Lewis: NI Protocol move needed to avoid empty food shelves in NI

RTÉ News, 04 March 20021

EU Parliament declines to set EU-UK trade deal vote Tony Connelly

The Guardian, 04 March 2021

<u>EU postpones setting date for ratifying Brexit trade deal; Move follows claim Boris Johnson broke international law for second time over Northern Ireland Daniel Boffey and Rory Carroll</u>

Irish Times, 04 March 2021

Extension of NI protocol period not breach of law, London claims; Downing Street acting in 'good faith' to help supermarkets and parcel operators adapt Denis Staunton and Naomi O'Leary

Irish Times, 04 March 2021

EU forced to take legal action as UK 'cannot be trusted' on protocol, says Coveney; Minister says EU will be left with no other option if Britain cannot be trusted Vivienne Clarke

BBC News, 04 March 2021

Brexit: EU negotiating 'with partner it can't trust', says Coveney

Irish Independent, 04 March 2021

Taoiseach accuses UK of 'undermining trust' on the North's special trade status; Martin's damning verdict comes as European Commission says London broke international law for the second time John Downing

RTÉ News, 04 March 2021

'Right now, the UK and the EU are not in a good place' Vittorio Bufacchi

News Letter, 03 March 2021

<u>UK extends Irish Sea border grace periods - Arlene Foster calls for 'permanent solution'</u>

Belfast Telegraph, 03 March 2021

British Government violating post-Brexit obligations, says EU; Britain is set to breach international law for a second time, EC vice-president Maros Sefcovic warned Michael McHugh

The Independent, 03 March 2021

Brussels accuses UK of 'violating' Brexit deal and threatens legal action;
Supermarkets to be given extended 'grace period' until at least October
Kate Devlin and Jon Stone

The Guardian, 03 March 2021

Brussels says plan to extend Brexit grace period breaks international law Daniel Boffey and Rory Carroll

Daily Mail, 03 March 2021

<u>European Commission slams Britain for 'breaching international law AGAIN'</u>
<u>by 'violating Brexit deal' to extend Irish border grace period until October</u>

Jack Newman

Irish News, 02 March 2021

European Commission expects permanent border control posts to be ready by middle of the year

Daily Express, 02 March 2021

Brexit protocols nightmare: Why is Northern Ireland causing even more chaos at the border? Kate Whitfield

Belfast Telegraph, 01 March 2021

Minister challenged by executive colleagues on move to halt work on port checks; DUP minister Gordon Lyons said the decision to stop work on the planned permanent inspection facilities was in response to NI Protocol 'uncertainty' David Young

RTÉ News, 01 March 2021

NI minister denies stoking tension with ports move

News Letter, 01 March 2021

The Northern Ireland Protocol is the problem, not Gordon Lyons, DUP tells Sinn Fein

RTÉ News. 01 March 2021

Post-Brexit crossroads: which turn will the EU and UK take? Tony Connelly

News Letter, 01 March 2021

Firms struggle in face of dual challenges

RTÉ News, 01 March 2021

UK moves to reassure EC on NI border control posts Tony Connelly

RTÉ News, 28 February 2021

NI Protocol 'here to stay' - Coveney Conor Kane

News Letter, 27 February 2021

64% of firms may no longer trade into NI due to Irish Sea Border Claire Cartmill

RTÉ News, 27 February 2021

NI Protocol 'here to stay' - Coveney Conor Kane

Belfast Telegraph, 26 February 2021

Call for urgent Executive meeting after DUP Minister Lyons halts

construction work on Brexit inspection posts at NI ports

Gareth Cross and David Young

The Independent, 26 February 2021

Brexit: DUP orders halt to construction of permanent food import inspection posts in Northern Ireland; Agriculture minister Gordon Lyons says Brexit protocol 'needs to be scrapped' Jon Sharman

Irish Times, 26 February 2021

<u>DUP minister orders halt to construction of inspection facilities for post-Brexit checks</u> Freya McClements

The Independent, 26 February 2021

Tory Brexit hardliners call on Boris Johnson to tear up Northern Ireland arrangements Andrew Woodcock

BBC News, 25 February 2021

Brexit: NI leaders at odds on Irish sea border meeting John Campbell

The Independent, 25 February 2021

Tory Brexit hardliners call on Boris Johnson to tear up Northern Ireland arrangements; European Resarch Group call for new rules on exports after weeks of disruption Andrew Woodcock

Irish Times, 25 February 2021

North's status under Belfast Agreement is an inconvenient truth; Brexit could not have been covered by 1998 accord but must be subject to its terms Monica McWilliams

News Letter, 24 February 2021

Two thirds of GB retailers plan to stop selling to Northern Ireland by April because of Irish Sea border, survey finds Sam McBride

RTÉ News, 24 February 2021

EU-UK agree to full implementation of NI protocol Tony Connelly

Belfast Telegraph, 23 February 2021

EU: easing customs rules is still on the table Sarah Collins

RTÉ News, 23 February 2021

<u>EU says UK must implement obligations of NI Protocol agreement</u>
Tony Connelly

News Letter, 22 February 2021

Irish Sea border toughens from today as red tape hits many British meats

BBC News, 22 February 2021

Brexit: Unionist parties to join NI Protocol legal challenge

Irish News, 22 February 2021

Former Attorney General John Larkin advising unionists on protocol court challenge John Manley

The Independent, 20 February 2021

Tear up Northern Ireland Protocol or risk return to violence, former first minister David Trimble warns; Pressure piled on on Boris Johnson to act with incendiary claim that province has been 'annexed by the EU' Rob Merrick

Belfast Telegraph, 18 February 2021

Foster appears to rule out 'Swiss-style' set-up for trade with Great Britain:

Switzerland adheres to EU rules on animal and plant health to trade with bloc

Freya McClements

The Independent, 18 February 2021

Brexit: Northern Ireland development agency boasts of dual access to GB and EU markets; New arrangements provide NI manufacturers with 'unique opportunity' for trade, body says Matt Mathers

Belfast Telegraph, 17 February 2021

<u>'Steady' flow of trade at Northern Ireland's ports under new arrangements;</u>

<u>Port representatives gave evidence to a Stormont committee</u> David Young

BBC News, 17 February 2021

Brexit: NI port operators warn of grace period end

Belfast Telegraph, 17 February 2021

Retailers: European Commission vice-president needs to engage on trade; On Thursday Maros Sefcovic is holding a meeting with business leaders on problems with the Northern Ireland Protocol Michael McHugh

The Guardian, 16 February 2021

EU 'clearing house' seeks to calm Brexit tensions over Northern Ireland; Maroš Šefčovič tells Dáil in Ireland he wants new committee to find solutions to trade problems Lisa O'Carroll News Letter, 15 February 2021

Retailers: We are facing 'a perfect storm' over new border regulations; Retail bosses have warned the sector faces a "perfect storm" as new border regulations come into force in April with a raft of retailers still unable to serve customers in Northern Ireland

News Letter, 14 February 2021

'No discussion on land border' says Sefcovic; The European Commission vice-president says he has not discussed UK proposals that would restore the border on the island of Ireland

RTÉ News, 14 February 2021

'Very constructive' meeting with Gove over NI Protocol - Sefcovic

London Evening Standard, 14 February 2021

'Boris' burrow' tunnel linking Northern Ireland and Scotland set to get the green light April Roach

The Independent, 14 February 2021

<u>DUP members threaten to bring down Northern Ireland government if Brexit deal is not scrapped; Party leadership urges Boris Johnson to trigger Article</u>
16 Jon Stone

News Letter, 13 February 2021

Northern Ireland is in a breathtakingly undemocratic position which dishonest Boris Johnson knows is indefensible – yet he knowingly chose it; Six weeks after the Irish Sea border began, it is more contentious than ever and efforts to delay, unilaterally suspend, or remove the new trade frontier are intensifying Sam McBride

The Independent, 13 February 2021

The problems in Northern Ireland are not caused by 'teething troubles' but Brexit – proof Boris Johnson cannot have his cake and eat it Andrew Grice

BBC News, 13 February 2021

Brexit: Can the Northern Ireland Protocol be tweaked? John Campbell

RTÉ News

Peter Robinson says unionists cannot 'try to ditch the protocol and administer it' Vincent Kearney, 12 February 2021

BBC News, 12 February 2021

UK and EU hold 'frank but constructive' talks on NI trade rules

Irish News, 12 February 2021

British government and EU reiterate 'full commitment to Northern Ireland Protocol following crisis talks Emma Bowden

The Independent, 11 February 2021

EU rejects UK calls to 'refine' Brexit deal's Northern Ireland protocol:

European Commission vice president says Northern Ireland protocol is 'only way to protect the Good Friday Agreement'

BBC News. 11 February 2021

Brexit: Preserving NI protocol is 'the only way' forward, warns EU

RTÉ News, 11 February 2021

Need to dial down rhetoric over protocol, says Martin

RTÉ News, 11 February 2021

EU accuses UK of failing to implement NI Protocol obligations

Tony Connelly

Irish News, 10 February 2021

Survey: Most NI manufacturers want the protocol to work Ryan McAleer

News Letter, 10 February 2021

Rather than 'best of both worlds', survey shows many Northern Ireland manufacturers struggling with Brexit's Irish Sea border Sam McBride

RTÉ News, 10 February 2021

<u>Agriculture staff resume Brexit checks at Northern Ireland ports</u> Vincent Kearney

BBC News, 10 February 2021

Brexit: Businesses call for extension of sea border checks grace periods
John Campbell

News Letter, 09 February 2021

Good Friday Agreement co-architect David Trimble says Irish Sea Border 'rips up' accord – and proposes alternative Sam McBride

Irish News, 09 February 2021

<u>Dublin government wants 'early warning system' on use of Article 16 of Northern Ireland Protocol</u> James Ward

Daily Mail, 08 February 2021

UK wins Irish backing for delay to Brexit port checks as Simon Coveney says he is open to extension of grace period Mar tin Beckford

Belfast Telegraph, 08 February 2021

NI's business activity slumps in first month of new protocol era; Costs rising for companies as they adjust to new trading arrangements that 'redraw map of UK single market' Margaret Canning

The Observer, 7 February 2021

Editorial: The Observer view on the cost of Brexit being huge. Just ask the Northern Irish; With UK exporters shutting up shop and anger simmering, Boris Johnson's reassurances to businesses ring increasingly hollow

Sunday Life, 07 February 2021

Brexit group think tank's alternative puts onus on 'mutual enforcement' Christopher Woodhouse

The Observer, 07 February 2021

The growing Brexit threat to Ireland; Northern Ireland has become a touchstone for Brexit Britain as trade barriers threaten wider disruption. In the port of Larne, the challenges being faced offer useful lessons for the wider UK Toby Helm, Lisa O'Carroll and Mick Browne

Irish Times, 06 February 2021

North must seek Brexit opportunities not just problems; Political challenge is to navigate NI's future without being drowned by noise Cliff Taylor

The Independent, 06 February 2021

The clash between the UK and EU over Northern Ireland is a precursor to confrontations that will last decades Patrick Cockburn

Belfast Telegraph, 5 February 2021

<u>EU bid to invoke Article 16 was trigger point for tension – Byrne; Chief</u>
<u>Constable says NI public needs to 'step back from the brink' of violence over protocol Andrew Madden</u>

News Letter, 05 February 2021

European Commission exploring 'flexibilities' in NI Protocol Michael McHugh

RTÉ News, 6 February 2021

Fear and loathing: Return of the Northern Ireland Protocol Tony Connelly

The Independent, 04 February 2021

EU will not respond to 'threats' from London over Northern Ireland border disruption, says Dublin Andrew Woodcock

The Guardian, 04 February 2021

Northern Ireland police chief urges calm amid post-Brexit tensions; 'Febrile' atmosphere in region after supplies of goods from Britain disrupted
Lisa O'Carroll

BBC News, 04 February 2021

Brexit: 'My NI business now has the best of both worlds' Clodagh Rice

The Guardian, 04 February 2021

Opinion: Brexit is increasing tension in Northern Ireland, but the protocol is the only way; The problems of a border down the Irish Sea were always known – checks and controls have to go somewhere David Phinnemore

BBC News, 03 February 2021

PM urges EU action to ease Brexit tensions in NI

Irish News, 03 February 2021

Free movement for goods Iorries despite Irish Sea border rules Connla Young

RTÉ News, 03 February 2021

Calls for removal of NI protocol unrealistic – Coveney

RTÉ News, 03 February 2021

EU concern over tone of Gove's demands on NI Protocol Tony Connelly

The Guardian, 02 February 2021

UK to seek lifting of Brexit controls in Northern Ireland; Gove to address checks on chilled meats and 'everything from pet transport to plants and seeds' Lisa O'Carroll and Rajeev Syal

agendaNi, February 2021

Protocol on Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol: Article 16

Katy Hayward and David Phinnemore

BBC News, 02 February 2021

EU condemns Northern Ireland Brexit port staff 'threats'

RTÉ News, 02 February 2021

The vaccines, the Commission and the NI Protocol: What went wrong?

Tony Connelly

RTÉ News, 02 February 2021

NI port safety issue 'a sinister and ugly development' - Taoiseach

BBC News, 02 February 2021

Brexit: Animal-based food checks at ports suspended

The Independent, 02 February 2021

Brexit food checks suspended at Northern Ireland ports amid safety concerns; Police monitoring growing unionist discontent over so-called Irish sea border Michelle Devane

Irish Times, 02 February 2021

'I regret that article 16 was mentioned': Von der Leyen statement in full; Questions put by The Irish Times to European Commission president Naomi O'Leary

Irish Times, 01 February 2021

The Irish Times view on the Border: an error with lasting impact; A serious misjudgment by the European Commission has given ammunition to opponents of the Northern Ireland protocol

BBC News, 31 January 2021

<u>Irish Sea border: What will happen once the grace periods end?</u>
John Campbell

The Observer, 31 January 2021

The Observer view on the vaccine dispute with Brussels; Making a scapegoat of Britain can't disguise the EU's shambolic response to Covid-19 vaccine acquisition

RTÉ News, 31 January 2021

'Everyone blaming everyone else' - Brexit, one month on Brian Finn

Irish Independent, 30 January 2020

Covid-19 vaccine chaos as EU is forced into U-turn after blocking supplies to the North Sarah Collins and Philip Ryan

RTÉ News, 30 January 2021

NI Protocol 'unaffected' by new vaccine measures planned by EU
Tony Connolly

Belfast Telegraph, 29 January 2021

EU moves to prevent NI from being used as vaccine backdoor to GB

Michael McHugh, David Young and James Ward

Irish Times, 28 January 2021

Brexit protocol-driven scarcities drive North towards discontent; NI stability at risk as empty shelves, VAT and red tape stir up constitutional anxieties

Gerry Moriarty

The Independent, 27 January 2021

Northern Ireland eels can't be sold in Britain after Brexit; Fishermen say new changes mean they will have to find new markets Matt Mathers

Belfast Telegraph, 27 January 2021

<u>Discontent growing over Northern Ireland protocol, police warn</u> Michael McHugh

Irish News, 26 January 2021

<u>Loyalists threaten to withdraw support for Good Friday Agreement</u>
Allison Morris

Daily Express, 26 January 2021

<u>Sturgeon snubbed as EU may allow Northern Ireland to automatically rejoin</u> <u>but not Scotland Martina Bet</u>

News Letter, 25 January 2021

<u>Loyalist Community Council joins NIO in defending meeting over Brexit and Northern Ireland Protocol</u> Philip Bradfield

News Letter, 25 January 2021

NIO defends meeting with loyalist umbrella group over Brexit concerns Philip Bradfield

Irish Times, 23 January 2021

<u>'Yesterday's man': Unionists on Osborne's united Ireland warning</u> Gerry Moriarty

Belfast Telegraph, 21 January 2021

EU will seek to address difficulties facing hauliers and retailers – Barnier; The EU Brexit negotiator said they would look 'to address the difficulties' but warned that new post-Brexit rules are here to stay James Ward

The Independent, 21 January 2021

<u>Liz Truss admits Brexit contributed to food shortages, contradicting Cabinet</u> colleague Samuel Osborne

BBC News, 21 January 2021

Food supply problems in NI clearly a Brexit issue - Coveney

Irish News, 20 January 2021

No extension to Northern Ireland Protocol grace periods, Brandon Lewis says David Young

Belfast Telegraph, 20 January 2021

Northern Ireland protocol 'has driven our road haulage back to the Dark Ages' Margaret Canning

Irish Times, 20 January 2021

North faces 'abyss' when Brexit grace period ends – hauliers; Current circumstances 'unsustainable', Stormont committee hears
Freya McClements

The Independent, 20 January 2021

Inside Politics: Boris Johnson's government accused of Brexit fairy tales;
Businesses, hauliers and politicians in Northern Ireland have hit back at
claims Brexit isn't to blame for current disruption Adam Forrest

Belfast Telegraph, 19 January 2021

English 'will not care' if Northern Ireland leaves UK for united Ireland, says former Chancellor Ralph Hewitt

Belfast Telegraph, 19 January 2021

Coronavirus not Brexit emptying NI shop shelves, says Brandon Lewis

News Letter, 18 January 2021

NI supermarket business figure: No food shortages, only choice issues; A lobbyist for NI supermarkets has insisted that whilst there are shortages of certain fresh foods in shops across the Province, the picture is getting better by the week Adam Kula

Irish News, 18 January 2021

Three Donegal ports among five to accept fish from NI-registered boats
Seamus McKinney

RTÉ News, 16 January 2021

The Brexit Effect: The squall before the storm Tony Connelly

BBC News, 15 January 2021

Brexit: Dublin Port 'minefield' leaves trucks stranded John Campbell

Irish News, 14 January 2021

<u>Hospitals and schools risk running out of food because of post-Brexit Irish</u> **Sea trade deal - Edwin Poots**

The Independent, 14 January 2021

Brexit trade agreement 'unworkable' for UK supermarkets, MPs told; Retailers and suppliers battling through 'impenetrable' red tape that has resulted in empty shelves in Northern Ireland Ben Chapman

RTÉ News, 14 January 2021

UK will suspend Protocol if supplies to Northern Ireland become critical

Belfast Telegraph, 14 January 2021

<u>Protocol promise: PM in vow to trigger Article 16 if trading difficulties</u> <u>worsen Andrew Madden and David Hughes</u>

Belfast Telegraph, 14 January 2021

Why Article 16 is no magic bullet to fix the Irish Sea border

Katy Hayward and David Phinnemore

RTÉ News, 13 January 2021

Are NI supermarket issues really just Brexit 'teething troubles'?
Sean Whelan

BBC News, 13 January 2021

Brexit: MP says teething problem remark is an 'insult' Jayne McCormack

News Letter, 13 January 2021

Boris Johnson insists Brexit 'teething problems' with NI trade can be resolved

Irish News, 13 January 2021

Supermarkets call for urgent intervention over Northern Ireland food supplies Michael McHugh and Sam Blewett

RTÉ News, 13 January 2021

Dedicated team established to work with NI supermarkets

Irish News, 11 January 2021

Calls for UK government and EU to simplify Irish Sea border checks as more empty shelves caused by post-Brexit disruption Suzanne McGonagle

News Letter, 09 January 2021

A week into the Irish Sea border, it is already clear that Northern Ireland will be profoundly reshaped by Brexit Sam McBride

RTÉ News, 09 January 2021

Northern Ireland-Britain supply chain at risk of collapse, hauliers warn

Irish New, 08 January 2021

Brandon Lewis criticised for insisting there is no Irish Sea border

The Guardian, 06 January 2021

Northern Ireland facing food supply disruption over Brexit, MPs told Rory Carroll

BBC News, 06 January 2021

Brexit: 'Problems' in first week of post-deal GB-NI trade Conor Macauley

RTÉ News, 06 January 2021

NI businesses highlight litany of problems over Protocol Tony Connelly

Irish Times, 05 January 2021

Dodds seeks urgent action to safeguard suspended deliveries from Britain to North; Some retailers suspended parcel deliveries to North and some firms halted sales due to concerns over paperwork and checks Freya McClements

News Letter, 04 January 2021

Days after Brexit, many products vanish from Sainsbury's in Northern Ireland and are replaced with Spar brand Sam McBride

BBC News, 04 January 2021

Brexit: Call for urgent action over deliveries to NI John Campbell

News Letter, 02 January 2021

Same paperwork is needed for sending GB goods to NI as for sending them to East Asia Adam Kula

News Letter, 02 January 2021

<u>'Sea border does not exist' says NI Secretary as Iorries wait in port to be checked</u> Adam Kula

RTÉ News, 01 January 2021

New post-Brexit system in place for Northern Ireland

Tommie Gorman

Belfast Telegraph, 01 January 2021

A practical guide to what Brexit means for people in Northern Ireland
Prof Katy Hayward

The Independent, 01 January 2021

Confusion over Brexit customs rules forces retailers to suspend Northern Ireland deliveries Ben Chapman